

Brunel Pension Partnership Climate-related Product Report

Year ending 31 December 2023

Thesis Unit Trust Management Limited is the fund operator for funds within the TM Brunel Pension Partnership ACS, as included in this Product Report.

Tutman is a trading style of TUTMAN LLP and Thesis Unit Trust Management Limited.





Contents

The Brunel portfolios listed in section 3 of this report are operated by Thesis Unit Trust Management Limited as fund operator of the TM Brunel Pension Partnership ACS.

Please note that the first two sections of the report includes aggregated data from all Brunel funds, including those which sit outside of the ACS framework.

| Introduction | 3 |
|---|-----|
| Executive summary | 5 |
| Brunel Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM | 7 |
| Brunel Equity Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM | 8 |
| Brunel Active Equity Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM | 9 |
| Dashboard | 10 |
| Introduction to climate-related disclosures | 12 |
| Absolute carbon emissions | 18 |
| Carbon to value intensity | 19 |
| Disclosure rates | 20 |
| Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) | 21 |
| Fossil fuel related activities | 22 |
| Fossil fuel reserves exposure | 23 |
| Potential emissions from reserves | 24 |
| Scenarios | 25 |
| Other metrics | 27 |
| Brunel Portfolios | 30 |
| Global High Alpha Equities | 30 |
| Global Sustainable Equities | 36 |
| UK Active Equities | 42 |
| Emerging Markets Equities | 48 |
| Global Small Cap Equities | 56 |
| Low Volatility Global Equities | 65 |
| Disclaimer | 108 |

Introduction

Our obligation under TCFD

Our Climate-related Product Reports provide information about the climate risks and impacts of our portfolios. They have been compiled in accordance with the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and rules and guidance of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).

Brunel has reported on climate-related metrics annually for a number of years, in our Carbon Metric reports, which can be found on our website. Further information about our approach to Responsible Investment (RI), strategy, governance, risks and opportunities can be found in our Climate Progress report, also available on our website.

The Climate-related Product report is designed to provide a better understanding of the impact our portfolios have on the climate. The report outlines various climate metrics for evaluating the potential risks and opportunities related to portfolios. Although we understand the limitations of some of the metrics and benchmarks used within the report, by adopting industry standards the reports offer a way to compare the performance of these portfolios with others across our whole offering, and the wider market.

Climate risk

Brunel Pension Partnership's mission to invest for a world worth living in is encapsulated in its commitment to build Responsible Investment into everything it does. Climate Change was and remains the highest priority of Brunel's RI agenda.

Climate change presents an immediate, systemic and material risk to the ecological, societal, and financial stability of every economy and country on the planet. It has direct implications for our clients and their beneficiaries.

Although we have always viewed climate change as a core part of our fiduciary duty, we are pleased to see the financial services industry's understanding of the nature of climate change develop significantly over the last few years. Most participants now regard it as a foreseeable and materially significant financial risk. Investors are acknowledged to be exposed to the risks and opportunities presented by climate change adaptation and mitigation - managing these impacts is an essential component of investor's fiduciary duty.

Our Climate beliefs:

- Climate change presents a systemic and material risk to the ecological, societal and financial stability of every economy and country on the planet and therefore will impact our clients, their beneficiaries and all portfolios.
- Investing to support the Paris goals that deliver a below 2°C temperature increase and pursuing efforts to limit the increase to 1.5°C, is entirely consistent with securing long-term financial returns and is aligned with the best long-term interests of our clients.
- For society to achieve a Net Zero carbon future by 2050 (or before) requires systemic change in the investment industry. Equipping and empowering our clients (and other investors) is central to this change. Given our strengths and our position in the market, we therefore believe that the key objective of our climate policy is to systematically change the investment industry so that it is fit for purpose for a world where temperature rise needs to be kept to well below 2°C, preferably to 1.5°C compared to pre-industrial levels.

Introduction

We manage more than we can measure

Brunel's approach to managing climate-related financial risks covers all our investments, and we have made considerable progress across all the asset classes we invest in. Demonstrating progress in all assets classes is complicated as many of the tools and techniques for measuring progress are dependent on publicly available information and are designed for corporate holdings rather than other asset types e.g., property or asset-backed securities.

Our approach to climate risk management is consistent across most of our active equity and corporate bond portfolios, however, Global Sustainable Equities (GSE) differs in its approach to climate opportunities in that the portfolio has a specific objective to pursue such opportunities. GSE also has restricted exposure to certain activities, typical of a product of this kind.

We seek to manage climate risk in each and every portfolio, as well in our own operations, but we are not in a position to quantitatively measure and report progress in all these areas. We prioritise the disclosure metrics for our listed equities and corporate bonds, as this represents two thirds of our asset under management (AUM).

As such Brunel's Diversified Return Fund and Multi-asset Credit both embed climate risk requirements into their design and on-going monitoring. However, both funds contain significant exposure to asset classes where methodologies are still being developed. As Brunel's portfolios are often comprised of multiple funds from different providers, we have opted not including analysis for these portfolios at this time as the lack of consistency could be misleading.

The Climate-related Product report is designed to provide detailed metrics and information regarding individual portfolios. It is recommended that these reports are not read in isolation. It should be considered alongside the Brunel Climate Progress Report, which provides much more information about the approach Brunel takes to climate change matters and how the specifics within this report match up to the strategic objectives of the business.

Executive summary

Highlights

- The Brunel Aggregate Portfolio is made up of underlying Brunel Portfolios, weighted by investments as of 31 December 2023. All chart data is dated 31st December 2023 unless otherwise stated.
- The Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) of the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio is below its Strategic Benchmark, with a relative efficiency of +24%.
- Of the Brunel Sub-Portfolios within the Aggregate, the highest intensity was the Brunel Passive Smart Beta Portfolio (316 tCO2e/mGBP), while the lowest was the Brunel Sterling Corporate Bonds Portfolio (92 tCO2e/mGBP).
- All underlying Brunel Portfolios within the Aggregate have lower or equal levels of carbon intensity compared to their respective benchmarks*.
- The Carbon to Value (C/V) Intensity metric is an aggregation of apportioned carbon emissions of constituents per 1 million invested. The C/V intensity of the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio is below its Strategic Benchmark, with a relative efficiency of +38%.
- The Brunel Aggregate Portfolio is less exposed to both fossil fuel revenues (0.85% vs 2.20%) and future emissions from reserves (8.1 MtCO2 vs 27.9 MtCO2) than its Strategic Benchmark.
- The Brunel Aggregate Portfolio has lower revenue exposure to fossil fuel related activities, by industry.
- Company disclosures rates are based on Scope 1 emissions, where the rate of companies in the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio for which fully disclosed carbon data was available was 38% (GHG weighted) and 40% (value weighted). Both GHG and value weighted modelled scope 1 disclosure rates have reduced in 2023.

For Noting

Methodology

Brunel's primary provider of climate and financial data for the product-report calculations is S&P Capital IQ. In preceding years, Brunel used S&P Trucost for the purpose of conducting our carbon metrics reporting. There exist nuanced differences in each entity's methodology, which account for variances in certain metrics. These subtle methodological differences are essential in understanding some of the changes observed in specific metrics. In addition, Brunel has taken methodological decisions based on industry data quality and availability.

You can read more about these methodological changes in the 'Introduction to climate-related disclosures' section.

Data Coverage

We found all Brunel equity portfolios to have an 85% coverage rate across all metrics, most in the high 90% range. Our corporate bond portfolio exceeds the minimum coverage threshold of 50% across all metrics.

*The Passive UK Equity portfolio is reading 0.5% higher than the benchmark due to variances in manager holdings

The Brunel aggregate portfolio and custom benchmark

This report includes a variety of carbon metrics, including the weighted average carbon intensity (WACI), fossil fuel activities, fossil fuel reserves, carbon data disclosure rates, absolute emissions and carbon-to-value intensity for each of the Brunel Active and Passive Portfolios.

We also report on the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio. This consists of each of the underlying Brunel Portfolios weighted by investments as of 31 December 2023. Details of this Portfolio are illustrated below.

We have also created a series of Custom Benchmarks, directly proportionate to the portfolios they are assessing, in order to make a meaningful comparator.

This Custom Benchmark consists of the benchmarks of the underlying Brunel Portfolios.



Brunel custom benchmark



| FTSE Dev World TR UKPD | 27.39% |
|-------------------------------|--------|
| MSCI World | 20.91% |
| MSCI ACWI | 20.72% |
| iBoxx Sterling Non Gilt x | 12.82% |
| FTSE All Share ex Inv Tr | 6.35% |
| MSCI Emerging Markets | 4.87% |
| MSCI Small Cap World | 4.66% |
| SciBeta Multifactor Composite | 1.62% |
| FTSE All Share | 0.66% |

Brunel Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-R | evenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| Waste Man | agement, Inc. | 1,976 | 0.41% | -5.06% |
| NextEra Ene | ergy, Inc. | 2,570 | 0.28% | -4.59% |
| Linde plc | | 1,483 | 0.39% | -3.58% |
| L'Air Liquide | e S.A. | 1,612 | 0.23% | -2.28% |
| Republic Se | ervices, Inc. | 1,934 | 0.18% | -2.20% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 38% | 40% |
| Modelled | 7% | 14% |
| Partial Disclosure | 55% | 46% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|----------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.28% | 0.13% |
| Shell plc | 0.57% | 0.10% |
| ConocoPhillips | 0.07% | 0.07% |
| MEG Energy Corp. | 0.08% | 0.07% |
| BP p.l.c. | 0.17% | 0.05% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 20 | FY 2022 | | FY 2023 | |
|----------------|-------|---------|-------|---------|--|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. | |
| Coal | 6.46 | 15.64 | 3.14 | 12.51 | |
| Oil | 7.80 | 11.22 | 3.13 | 9.15 | |
| Gas | 2.91 | 7.01 | 1.73 | 6.25 | |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.15 | 0.08 | 0.10 | 0.04 | |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Brunel Portfolio.

Brunel Equity Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-R | evenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| Waste Man | agement, Inc. | 1,976 | 0.46% | -5.45% |
| NextEra Ene | ergy, Inc. | 2,570 | 0.32% | -4.95% |
| Linde plc | | 1,483 | 0.45% | -3.85% |
| L'Air Liquide | S.A. | 1,612 | 0.26% | -2.45% |
| Republic Se | rvices, Inc. | 1,934 | 0.21% | -2.37% |

The WACI shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 37% | 45% |
| Modelled | 6% | 9% |
| Partial Disclosure | 57% | 46% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|----------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.32% | 0.14% |
| Shell plc | 0.65% | 0.11% |
| ConocoPhillips | 0.08% | 0.08% |
| MEG Energy Corp. | 0.10% | 0.08% |
| BP p.l.c. | 0.19% | 0.06% |

The Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Coal Oil Gas 🗾 Oil and/or Gas

Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 2023 | |
|----------------|---------|-------|
| | Port. | Ben. |
| Coal | 3.14 | 12.23 |
| Oil | 3.13 | 8.98 |
| Gas | 1.73 | 6.13 |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.10 | 0.04 |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Brunel Portfolio.

Brunel Active Equity Aggregate vs. Brunel Custom BM



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-Revenu (tCO2 | e intensity 2e/mGBP) | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---------------------------|-------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| Waste Mana | gement, Inc. | 1,976 | 0.52% | -6.34% |
| L'Air Liquide | S.A. | 1,612 | 0.37% | -3.61% |
| Republic Ser | vices, Inc. | 1,934 | 0.28% | -3.30% |
| InterContine | ntal Hotels Group | 1,022 | 0.46% | -2.66% |
| Linde plc | | 1,483 | 0.28% | -2.49% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 32% | 42% |
| Modelled | 7% | 12% |
| Partial Disclosure | 61% | 47% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|----------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| Shell plc | 0.88% | 0.15% |
| MEG Energy Corp. | 0.15% | 0.12% |
| ConocoPhillips | 0.10% | 0.10% |
| BP p.l.c. | 0.24% | 0.08% |
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.14% | 0.06% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | | |
|---|-------|-------|
| Source | FY 20 | 023 |
| | Port. | Ben. |
| Coal | 2.65 | 10.56 |
| Oil | 2.47 | 6.06 |
| Gas | 1.26 | 4.45 |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.10 | 0.04 |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Brunel Portfolio.

Dashboard



Absolute carbon footprint by scope











Dashboard - cont.



Scope 1 disclosure rates



Fossil fuel reserves exposure



Introduction to climate-related disclosures

The Why

Climate change is not only an environmental challenge but a significant financial risk on a global scale. As temperatures continue to increase, climate policies evolve, and new technologies emerge, it becomes crucial for financial markets to have transparent, comprehensive, and high-quality information. This information helps navigate the complexities of climate-related impacts, both in terms of risks and opportunities.

In our climate-related product reports we have disclosed the relevant metrics to meet the FCA content requirements, and further metrics we deem to be appropriate and useful when assessing a climate-related product report.

Financed Emissions

The following sections will outline the metrics we have included in the product-report covering equities and corporate bonds, showcasing the results and discussing the methodology and limitations of the metrics. Equities and corporate bonds are currently the asset classes included due to the consensus on the applied methodologies. As agreement on approaches and data for more asset types grow, Brunel plans to include these asset categories in future reports.



The emissions boundary used for the product reports, includes Direct and first-tier Indirect Emissions. "Direct Emissions" are defined as Scope 1 emissions in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol, including additional emissions from a wider range of greenhouse gases relevant to a company's activities. "First-tier Indirect Emissions" are defined as Scope 2 emissions by the GHG Protocol, along with emissions stemming from the company's immediate upstream supply chain, specifically their direct suppliers. This methodology is designed to include important upstream Scope 3 emissions pertinent to the company, while also reducing the issue of double counting Scope 3 emissions.

Due to the timing of data used, we currently only incorporate Scope 2 Location-based data, with the intention of including Scope 2 Market-based data in future iterations of the report.

Metrics: Not in Isolation

An extended range of climate data is considered throughout the report, including backward and forwardlooking metrics. We analyse the overall climate performance of a portfolio through a range of metrics because each metric highlights a different perspective of a portfolio's climate performance.

Introduction to climate-related disclosures

It is not suitable to view a metric in isolation as a company with a high weighted average carbon intensity (WACI), may be aligned to the Paris Agreement goals and supporting the transition in a hard to abate sector.

It is important to be aware of the shortcomings of climate metrics, in that they can be impacted by currency fluctuations and portfolio changes.

Data coverage

In our approach, we have established distinct minimum data coverage thresholds for equities and corporate bonds, reflective of the varying degrees of data availability and recency. For equities, we mandate a minimum data coverage of 85% across all metrics. This threshold is informed by the broader availability and recentness of data, permitting the use of up to three years of backward-looking fiscal year data. The higher threshold ensures the reliability and relevance of our equity analysis, leveraging the extensive data accessible in public markets.

Conversely, corporate bonds are subject to a lower minimum data coverage threshold of 50% across all metrics. This adjustment acknowledges the challenges associated with data availability and recency in this asset class, stemming primarily from the inclusion of private companies. The mixed nature of data sources, combining public and private company information, introduces variability in reporting standards. Private companies often face less stringent reporting requirements, impacting both the recency and availability of comprehensive data. This necessitates a more conservative threshold to accommodate the disparate data quality and completeness in our analysis.

We found all equity portfolios to have an 85% coverage rate across all metrics, most in the high 90% range. Our corporate bond portfolio exceeds the minimum coverage threshold of 50% across all metrics.

To enhance our data coverage across these asset classes and emissions, we are implementing several strategies. These include intensifying our engagement with data providers to address gaps, investing in analytical tools, and reviewing our data sources to continuously improve our data coverage quality.

We are committed to transparency in our reporting process. Should any segment of our analysis fall below the set minimum data coverage thresholds, we will clearly denote these instances, outlining their potential implications on the reliability of our findings. This approach ensures our clients are fully informed of the data's scope and limitations impacting our analysis.

Metrics Overview

Regulation requires the inclusion of metrics used in the assessment of climate-related risks and opportunities that we believe are useful to investors. The metrics include but are not limited to the Carbon Footprint, Weighted Average Carbon Intensity and Total Emissions of each portfolio, as required by the climate disclosure rules. These rules also require the inclusion of scenario analysis metrics where a portfolio has concentrated exposures or high exposures to carbon intensive sectors. Whilst we do not believe we are required to include these metrics, on the basis of the above description, we have chosen to do so voluntarily.

In addition, it is advised to consider providing other metrics we believe are useful for decision-making. As such we have chosen to include metrics related to fossil fuel reserves to evaluate both the immediate revenue exposure from fossil fuel activities and the associated risks from unextracted reserves. The metrics identify the potential risk of stranded assets, which may arise from regulatory changes or shifts in market dynamics favouring alternative energy sources. By highlighting the environmental risks, the fossil fuel reserve metrics helps to inform the investment decision-making process.

The summary table below gives a brief synopsis of each metric. A full description of each metric is included in the following pages.

Introduction to climate-related disclosures

Backward Looking Metrics

| Metric | Unit | What does it tell me? | Benefits | Limitations | How we use it |
|------------------------|------------|---|---|--|---|
| Absolute Emissions | tCO2e | The absolute greenhouse gas emissions associated with a portfolio, expressed in tons of CO2e. | Investors ownership of emissions Consistent with the GHG Protocol | Size of portfolio can skew results Subject to market fluctuations | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |
| Emissions Intensity | tCO2e/mGBP | Emissions exposure per unit of revenue or value-of- holdings | Standard scope emissions data used Normalised for size, allowing comparability across portfolios. | Sensitive to market fluctuations | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |
| Disclosure | % | Percentage disclosure by value-of- holdings or greenhouse gas emissions | Standard scope emissions data inputs | Currently only based on CO2 Scope 1 Disclosure | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |

Forward Looking Metrics

| Metric | Unit | What does it tell me? | Benefits | Limitations | How we use it |
|--------------------------------|--|--|--|---|---|
| Paris Alignment | °C | Climate warming scenario | Track goal of limiting global warming to below 2°C | SDA and GEVA approach used Volatility in underlying data Based on multiple assumptions | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |
| Carbon Earnings- at-Risk | % | Unpriced Carbon Cost as % EBITDA | Impact to company earnings today if companies had to pay a future price | Present-day financials and emissions used Carbon prices are estimated based on hypothetical future scenarios | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |
| Physical Risk | % | Annual weighted average asset value | Financial costs arising from changes in all hazard exposures vs the historical baseline | Based on assumed asset value of all known assets | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |
| Fossil Fuel Reserves | Exposure (%) Intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) Future emissions (MtCO2e) | Proven (>90%) and probable (>50%) reserves | Assess the potential risk of stranded assets | Based on disclosure | Portfolio and company level (Equity and Corporate Bonds) |

Introduction to climate-related disclosures

Methodological Considerations

Apportioning Denominator and Data Availability

Brunel's primary provider of climate and financial data for the product-report calculations is S&P Capital IQ.

In preceding years, Brunel used S&P Trucost for the purpose of conducting our carbon metrics reporting. Despite both Capital IQ and Trucost being integral components of the S&P product suite, there exist nuanced differences in their methodologies, which account for variances in certain metrics, such as the weighted average carbon intensity. In addition, Brunel has taken methodological decisions based on industry data quality and availability.

The methodological distinctions can be attributed to several factors, including:

- The level of data pertaining to the corporate tree of issuers.
- Variations in exchange rates.
- Averages specific to industry sectors.
- Proxies for the Enterprise Value Including Cash (EVIC) of private companies.

These subtle yet significant methodological differences are essential in understanding the changes observed in specific metrics.

Climate data is continuously updated to incorporate the latest relevant data publicly disclosed by companies. Therefore, the information available at a specific point in time may differ in subsequent updates due to historical revisions, new information, and enhancements in methodology.

When calculating an investor's 'ownership' of emissions, we use enterprise value including cash (EVIC) as the appropriate apportioning metric.

Carbon Intensity

At present, we utilise Revenue as the denominator in our Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) metric, following the current recommendations the Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF Standard). However, in our future reports, we are considering presenting a WACI denominated by Enterprise Value Including Cash (EVIC) alongside our current Revenue-based WACI. This evolution in our reporting strategy is motivated by the necessity to align with the EU's defined WACI definition, which stipulate the use of EVIC, to ensure it is in accordance with the EU Paris-aligned benchmark criteria. By displaying both the EVIC and Revenue denominated WACIs, we aim to provide a more nuanced and comprehensive understanding of our carbon intensity, recognising that the different denominators may offer varied insights.

Forward looking scenarios

This year's product report sees the addition of new forward looking metrics including Paris Alignment to show the climate warming scenario, and two types of climate value-at-risk metrics namely Physical Risk and Carbon Earnings-at-Risk that focuses more on transition risks.

We use Carbon Earnings at Risk and Physical Risk Financial Impact Composite Score as two types of Valueat-Risk metrics following S&P's methodology. The Carbon Earnings at Risk metrics focuses more on the financial implications of transitioning to a low-carbon economy, specifically regarding carbon pricing. This is crucial for understanding how policy changes, technological advancements, and shifts in consumer preferences towards more sustainable options might impact a company's financial performance. The Physical Risk Financial Impact Composite Score addresses the other side of the climate risk spectrum by quantifying the potential financial impacts of physical climate risks. These risks include the effects of extreme

Introduction to climate-related disclosures

weather events and long-term shifts in climate patterns on company assets, supply chains, and overall business operations.

It's important to acknowledge that the industry is currently developing a variety of scenarios and portfolio temperature metrics. We recommend exercising care when comparing scores between different methodologies at this point in time.

Paris Alignment

The Paris Alignment metrics describes the climate transition pathway or trajectory each company is expected to align to keep warming below 2°C, based on historic emissions trends and company targets.

In order to aggregate the Paris Alignment metric up to portfolio level and improve company coverage two methodologies are utilised. Namely the Sectoral Decarbonisation Approach (SDA) and GHG per Emissions of Value Added (GEVA).

The SDA targets companies engaged in high-emission, uniform business activities, leveraging defined carbon budgets for assessment as defined by the Science Based Target Initiative (SBTi).

Conversely, the GEVA method is suited for companies operating in sectors with lower emissions and more diverse activities, lacking a specific carbon budget.

The GEVA model broadens the scope of applicable companies, improving the overall issuer coverage. Nonetheless, given its reliance on gross profit for calculations and extensive use of modelling, it's important to acknowledge the possibility of misleading conclusions regarding scenario alignment, especially when employing the GEVA method.

The parameters for the SDA assessment offer an upper limit of 3°C warming, and for the GEVA method, the limit extends to 5°C. When these methodologies are combined, the highest level of climate warming scenario observable at the portfolio level is constrained to 3°C.

Physical Risk

The Physical Risk methodology assesses the potential impact of climate change on a company's physical assets.

Companies exposed to extreme weather events and the physical impacts of climate change will likely see increasingly significant financial costs over the coming decades.

The physical risk metrics highlights the financial impact at the company level of the weighted average financial impact for all assets linked to the company, weighted by the estimated value of the assets.

Shared Socioeconomic Pathways (SSPs) are climate change scenarios of projected socioeconomic global changes up to 2100 as defined in the IPCC Sixth Assessment Report on climate change in 2021.

These projections are based on three climate scenarios:

- High Climate Change Scenario (SSP5-8.5): Low mitigation scenario in which total greenhouse gas emissions triple by 2075 and global average temperatures rise by 3.3-5.7 °C by 2100.
- Medium Climate Change Scenario (SSP2-4.5): Strong mitigation scenario in which total greenhouse gas emissions stabilise at current levels until 2050 and then decline to 2100. This scenario is expected to result in global average temperatures rising by 2.1-3.5 °C by 2100.
- Low Climate Change Scenario (SSP1-2.6): Aggressive mitigation scenario in which total greenhouse gas emission reduce to net zero by 2050, resulting in global average temperatures rising by 1.3-2.4 °C by 2100, consistent with the goals of the Paris Agreement.

Introduction to climate-related disclosures

Carbon Earnings at Risk

The Carbon Earnings-at-Risk metric gauges the potential financial consequences of carbon pricing at a company or portfolio level, across various possible future scenarios. It helps separate the specific risks related to carbon pricing from broader carbon-related risks, such as the physical impacts of climate change or the risk of assets becoming stranded.

It provides insight into the implications of future carbon pricing policies for a company using its present-day financials and emissions. Only the future carbon price is projected forward based on scenarios from the International Energy Agency (IEA) and current carbon prices (e.g. global emissions trading schemes, fossil fuel and carbon taxes).

Future carbon pricing looks at three scenarios:

- High: Represents the implementation of policies that are considered sufficient to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in line with the goal of limiting climate change to 2°C above pre-industrial levels by 2100 (the Paris Agreement).
- Medium: Assumes that policies will be implemented to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and limit climate change to 2°C in the long term, but with action delayed in the short term.
- Low: Represents the full implementation of country Nationally Determined Contributions under the Paris Agreement.

The Entity Report

The product report compliments the entity report, which outlines Brunel's overall approach to governance, strategy, and risk management under climate-related disclosures.

What next?

As outlined above, we're set on enhancing the quality and completeness of our disclosures by including Scope 2 Market-based data in future iterations of the report. Recognising the current shortcoming of metrics, we also plan on adding EVIC alongside our current Revenue-based WACI, while improving data gathering and analysis, and keeping our practices under regular review to stay aligned with industry practice.

Our aim is more than just meeting expectations; we're committed to enhancing transparency and reliability. We will continue to work with our data partners to review and improve methodology, in line with data availability and regulatory requirements. This reflects our dedication to high standards of accountability and regulatory compliance, helping us improve our operations and strengthen stakeholder trust.

Absolute carbon emissions

Absolute carbon emissions show a portfolio's overall contribution to global greenhouse gas (GHG) levels. It quantifies an investors responsibility for carbon emissions based on the level of capital invested in companies. The higher percentage holding in a company within a portfolio, the more of its emissions are 'owned'.

Absolute emissions for different portfolios cannot be compared on a like for like basis because size can skew the results. Year on year comparisons can be distorted by fluctuations in company value impacting the apportioned emissions.



Absolute carbon footprint by scope

Direct (emissions) - GHG Protocol's scope 1 emissions, plus any other emissions derived from a wider range of greenhouse gases relevant to a company's operations. Scope 1 emissions are those directly emitting sources that are owned or controlled by a company, for example, produced by the internal combustion engines of a trucking company's lorry fleet.

Scope 2 (emissions) - from the consumption of purchased electricity, steam, or other sources of energy generated upstream from a company's direct operations.

First Tier Scope 3 (emissions) - the company's first-tier upstream supply chain - the emissions of their direct suppliers.

Carbon to value intensity

Carbon to value intensity shows the GHG emissions you own divided by the value of your holdings.

It allows for comparisons across investments of different sizes, time periods and indices, as it provides a figure for greenhouse gas impact per 1 million invested.

The picture painted by carbon to value intensity is similar to that of weighted carbon average intensity (WACI) but this metric is about the emissions you own within a portfolio, the WACI is an indicator of the carbon risk a portfolio is exposed to.

This metric is sensitive to swings in market capitalisation, which can limit the value of year-on-year comparisons.



Carbon to value invested (C/V)

Disclosure rates

Disclosure rates categorise organisations based on their voluntary climate related disclosures. Disclosure is provided on an investment weighted (Value of Holdings) and greenhouse gas weighted basis (GHG).

Currently the disclosure analysis is based on scope 1 emissions only.

To determine the carbon footprints and associated metrics company information is collected such as disclosure around greenhouse gas emissions and business activities. A variety of sources are used to collect this data such as annual reports and financial statements, regulatory filings, Corporate Social Responsibility reports and information published on company websites.

In the absence of this data, S&P uses what is known as an 'input-output model' to estimate as best as possible the data for a particular company. This model combines industry-specific environmental impact data alongside macroeconomic data. Sometimes a company reports some carbon or business activity data; in which case S&P can partially model the company's footprints and metrics. In the absence of usable or up to date disclosures S&P fully models a company's footprint and metrics.

The methodology has been updated to reflect more granular disclosures. Companies must now be disclosing emissions across the different Kyoto protocol gases in order to be classified as 'full disclosure', whereas previously only an aggregate emissions figure was required.

Brunel's public policy position is to call for mandatory direct disclosure of scope 1, 2 and material scope 3 emissions data.



Scope 1 disclosure rates

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.

Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI)

WACI shows a portfolio's exposure to carbon intensive companies; it is an indicator of the carbon risk a portfolio is exposed to. This measure is determined by taking the carbon intensity of each company and weighting it based on its holding size within the portfolio. The relevant 2019 portfolio benchmark forms the baseline, unless otherwise stated.

WACI is one of the measures recommended by TCFD because carbon intensive companies are more likely to be exposed to potential carbon regulations and carbon pricing. It is a useful indicator of potential exposure to transition risks such as policy interventions and changing consumer behaviours relative to other portfolios or benchmarks.

As with all metrics there are limitations, WACI does not link to ownership, as revenue is used WACI favours those with high prices for service and products, it is also sensitive to currency exchange rate.



Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI)

| Portfolio | Reduction % | 2023 Portfolio | 2019 Baseline |
|--|-------------|----------------|---------------|
| Aggregate | 57.02% | 147 | 343 |
| Active Portfolios | | | |
| Global High Alpha Equities | 64.55% | 107 | 301 |
| Global Sustainable Equities | 41.24% | 196 | 334 |
| UK Active Equities | 58.71% | 116 | 282 |
| Emerging Markets Equities | 57.16% | 244 | 570 |
| Global Small Cap Equities ¹ | 54.72% | 140 | 309 |
| Low Volatility Global Equities | 62.31% | 126 | 334 |
| Sterling Corporate Bonds ² | 49.88% | 92 | 184 |
| Passive Portfolios | | | |
| PAB Passive Global Equities | 52.24% | 145 | 303 |
| CTB Passive Global Equities | 44.95% | 167 | 303 |
| Passive Developed Equities | 39.96% | 182 | 303 |
| Passive UK Equities | 34.53% | 184 | 281 |
| Passive Smart Beta | 42.95% | 316 | 554 |

1 Updated methodology in 2020 means we have taken December 2020 as a baseline for the Brunel Global Small Cap Equities

2 This Portfolio has a baseline of 31 December 2021

Fossil fuel related activities

Potentially Stranded Assets

It is important to identify exposure to business activities in extractives industries to assess the potential risk of 'stranded assets'. Stranded assets are assets that may suffer premature write-downs and may even become obsolete due to changes in policy or consumer behaviour. We can identify the exposure to stranded asset risk by considering the fossil fuel related activities of the underlying companies within our portfolios or, considering fossil fuel reserves.

The fossil fuel related activities metric shows the percentage of revenues that are engaged in fossil fuel related activities. It identifies companies with exposure to fossil fuel related energy generation (gas, petrol and coal power) and fossil fuel related extraction activities. This assesses the revenue exposure that each company has to these activities - and aggregates this to an overall portfolio assessment.

We illustrate this revenue exposure for all Brunel Portfolios and their respective benchmarks. We also provide an assessment of the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio.

This metric is liable to fluctuations of revenue.



Industry breakdown of fossil fuel related activities

Proven reserves exposure - have a > 90% chance of being present

Probable reserves exposure - have a >50% chance of being present

Fossil fuel reserves exposure

The fossil fuel reserves exposure metric looks at exposure to fossil fuels that have not been realised by an organisation. It supports the identification of potential stranded assets. Fossil fuel reserves exposure give us a measure of companies that have disclosed their 'proven' reserves, as well as capturing companies that have 'probable' fossil fuel reserves.

We identify companies that have both proven and probable reserves - and can look at the aggregate exposure within each of our portfolios, as well as the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio. Each portfolio is illustrated in this report against its respective benchmark.



Fossil fuel reserves exposure

Potential emissions from reserves

Taking the reserves exposures previously discussed, we can look at an assessment of potential future emissions that may incur from these reserves being realised. This metric is not included in the WACI figure (which focuses on current intensity) - and so it is an important assessment of company's potential contribution to emissions via its stockpile of fossil fuels.

We have been able to assess the potential emissions associated with the proven and probable reserves for companies within our portfolios, as well as an overall portfolio assessment. The reserves intensity highlights the risk of stranded assets across different portfolios, expressed on a basis of per GBP 1 million invested.

We illustrate the potential emissions from reserves for each of our portfolios and their respective benchmarks below, as well as the Brunel Portfolio.



Fossil fuel reserves intensity

As well as an overall assessment of potential emissions from reserves, we are able to break these potential emissions down by fossil fuel type. We illustrate this analysis for the Brunel Aggregate Portfolio and respective benchmarks, as well as how it has changed over time.



Future emissions from reserves by type

Scenarios cont.

In their nature, scenarios are uncertain and not a precise science. The scenarios put forward will never come to pass as described, but also are also based on assumptions and often new and evolving data sets.

Scenarios are a useful tool for our portfolios managers to engage in dialogue and to ask the right questions about holdings, they are not a tool to use in isolation and investment decisions should never be based solely on them.

Paris Alignment

The Paris Alignment tracks portfolios and benchmarks against the goal of limiting global warming to below 2°C from pre-industrial levels.

Two methods are used to calculate the Paris Alignment, to allow us to generate a metric for the whole portfolio. The sectoral decarbonization approach, which covers around 400 companies, and is used by the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI), provides parameters consistent with three global warming scenarios (<1.5°C, 1.5°-2°C, 2°-3°C). Other companies within our portfolios are calculated using the 'greenhouse gas emissions per value added' or GEVA, provides parameters consistent with 2°C, 3°C, 4°C and 5°C.

Paris Alignment or 'Alignment gap' - this uses S&P's 2°C Alignment Assessment to track the portfolios against these benchmarks for each scenario.

Apportioned tCO2e Expected Under/Over 2°C Carbon Budget - this approach taken by S&P can be described as a transition pathway assessment, which examines the adequacy of emissions reductions over time in meeting a 2°C carbon budget.

Worst and Top Portfolio Performers for Emission Reduction Goals - provides an indication of company's absolute apportioned emissions above or below the 2°C pathway. Negative numbers mean a portfolio is aligned with a scenario (under budget or stronger performance). Positive numbers mean a portfolio is misaligned with a scenario (over budget or weaker performance).

Apportioned tCO2e for each company is calculated by taking the value of each holding in the portfolio and dividing that by the value of outstanding issuance (total value invested/enterprise value including cash) and multiplying that by the companies' emissions (under)/over the carbon budget. The final portfolio metric is the sum of apportioned aligned emissions for all companies, to either give a negative figure (aligned) or positive figure (misaligned). This is calculated separately for all years from base to horizon year.

There are limitations of Paris Alignment, the results are sensitive to the chosen baseline year, there are advantages to including a longer time horizon in the scenario analysis. Volatility in the underlying data, especially in the GEVA method can contribute to differences, as can non-disclosure, double counting. Both scope of emissions considered and avoided emissions mean this is an imperfect science. Methodologies around Paris Alignment are embryonic.

Physical Risk

Physical risk shows, on a weighted basis, the annual cost incurred as a percentage of the company assets.

Physical impact composite score - this shows us the costs a company would be expected to incur, due to physical risk, if a future climate scenario were to manifest now. For this metric a low 'score' is a good thing, as it means that the physical hazards that will happen will have a much lower impact on the company or asset.

The financial impacts are calculated for each climate hazard under each scenario and time period, and these are summed to a combined 'Financial Impact' metric covering all hazards.

Scenarios cont.

The combined Financial Impact metric is the sum of estimated financial costs arising from changes in all hazard exposures vs the historical baseline, expressed as a percentage of the value of a given asset type (asset level).

For example, if the chart shows 3% for a 2050 High Scenario it means, on a market-weighted basis, if the future climate scenario were to manifest now, the average portfolio company would expect to incur costs equal to 3% of company assets annually.

Financial impact by Risk Type - calculated in the same way as the physical impact composite score, but this is broken down by the different hazard exposure types.

Top Contributors to Portfolio-Level Physical Risk - identifying the top contributors at a portfolio level, broken down into:

- Asset count the number of assets in the S&P database mapped to the company.
- Portfolio Financial Impact composite score the sum of the estimated financial costs arising from changes in all hazard exposures vs the historic baseline (expressed as a percentage of the value of the asset type).
- Composite score ranging from 1 100 it represents the combined exposure to all eight climate change hazards.
- Sensitivity adjusted composite score the composite score for each physical risk indicator adjusted to reflect the sensitivity of a company to each risk indicator and its impacts.

Limitations to the Physical Risk analysis include modelling uncertainty, uncertainty around asset locations, hazard correlation as well as imperfections in the sensitivity framework. Limitations to data sources come from company asset coverage and spatial resolutions.

Carbon Earnings-at-Risk

Carbon Earnings-at-Risk assess the potential impact to a company's earnings today if it had to pay a future price for their greenhouse gas emissions. This indicates which companies are facing more significant carbon price risk.

It looks at the percentage of a company's core corporate profitability, calculated using earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA), that contains unpriced carbon risk under specific scenarios.

Future carbon pricing looks at three scenarios:

- High: Represents the implementation of policies that are considered sufficient to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in line with the goal of limiting climate change to 2°C above pre-industrial levels by 2100 (the Paris Agreement).
- Medium: Assumes that policies will be implemented to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and limit climate change to 2°C in the long term, but with action delayed in the short term.
- Low: Represents the full implementation of country Nationally Determined Contributions under the Paris Agreement.

Other metrics

Corporations globally are making commitments, setting targets and laying out plans to transition their business to align with the objectives of the Paris Agreement. We assess the adequacy of the corporation's response currently undertaken using the TPI and CA100+ benchmark, as well as data from other sources. We are aware that these tools are still evolving to provide more nuanced data for investment decision-making. Whilst acknowledging the limits of assessment methodologies we have; we will use these to engage with managers to challenge the investment case of controversial holdings.

Brunel Portfolio Managers have provided portfolio specific commentary for the metrics included in this report. In addition to the metrics described on previous pages there may also be reference to TPI Management Quality and Carbon Performance' and CA100+ Net Zero Corporate Benchmark. We use these tools on a ongoing basis in our internal investment governance committees.

The TPI Tool

The Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI) is a global, asset-owner led initiative which assesses companies' preparedness for the transition to a low carbon economy. The TPI tool uses publicly available company information to assess:

Management quality - The quality of companies' management of their greenhouse gas emissions and of risks and opportunities related to the low carbon transition.

Carbon performance - How companies' carbon performance now and in the future might compare to the international targets and national pledges made as part of the Paris Agreement.

Companies' management quality - is assessed annually across 17 indicators. Companies are placed on one of five levels:

- Level 0 Unaware of (or not Acknowledging) Climate Change as a Business Issue.
- Level 1 Acknowledging Climate Change as a Business Issue: the company acknowledges that climate change presents business risks and/or opportunities, and that the company has a responsibility to manage its greenhouse gas emissions. This is often the point where companies adopt a climate change policy.
- Level 2 Building Capacity: the company develops its basic capacity, its management systems and processes, and starts to report on practice and performance.
- Level 3 Integrating into Operational Decision-Making: the company improves its operational practices, assigns senior management or board responsibility for climate change, and provides comprehensive disclosures on its carbon practices and performance.
- Level 4 Strategic Assessment: the company develops a more strategic and holistic understanding of risks and opportunities related to the low-carbon transition and integrates this into its business strategy.
- Level 5 Transition Planning and Implementation: The company uses its strategic understanding of climate and transition risk/opportunity to create a detailed and actionable transition plan which aligns business practices and capital expenditure decisions with their decarbonisation goals.

For more information see the https://www.transitionpathwayinitiative.org/publications/uploads/2023methodology-report-management-quality-and-carbon-performance-version-5-0

https://www.transitionpathwayinitiative.org/

Brunel Pension Partnership

Other metrics cont.

The Management Quality (MQ) staircase

| Level 0 | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Level 4 | Level 5 [BETA] |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| Unaware | Awareness | Building capacity | Integrating into operational decision making | Strategic assessment | Transition planning and implementation |
| MQ1. Company does not recognise climate change as a significant issue for the business | MQ2. Company recognises climate change as a relevant risk/opportunity for the business MQ3. Company has a policy (or equivalent) commitment to action on climate change | MQ4. Company has set GHG emission reduction targets MQ5. Company has published info. On its operational GHG emissions | MQ6. Company has nominated a board member/committee with explicit responsibility for oversight of the climate change policy MQ7. Company has set quantitative targets for reducing its GHG emissions MQ8. Company reports on its Scope 3 GHG emissions MQ9. Company has had its operational GHG emissions data verified MQ10. Company supports domestic & international efforts to mitigate climate change MQ11. Company has a process to manage climate-related risks MQ12. Company discloses materially important Scope 3 emissions | MQ13. Company has set long-term quantitative targets (>5 years) for reducing its GHG emissions MQ14. Company has incorporated climate change performance into executive remuneration MQ15. Company has incorporated climate change risks and opportunities in its strategy MQ16. Company undertakes climate scenario planning MQ17. Company discloses an internal carbon price MQ18. Company discloses the actions necessary to meet its emissions-reduction targets | MQ19, Company quantifies the key elements of its emissions-reduction strategy and the proportional impact of each action in achieving its targets MQ20. Company's transition plan clarifies the role that will be played by offsets and/or negative emissions technologies MQ21. Company commits to phasing out capital expenditure in carbon intensive assets or products MQ22. Company aligns future capital expenditures with its long-term decarbonisation goals and discloses how the alignment is determined MQ23. Company ensure consistency between its climate change policy and the positions taken by trade associations of which it is a member |

Source - TPI's methodology report: Management Quality and Carbon Performance Version 5.0, November 2023

Climate Action 100+ Net-Zero Company Benchmark

The Climate Action 100+ Net Zero Company Benchmark assesses the performance of focus companies against the initiative's three high-level goals: emissions reduction, governance, and disclosure on and implementation of net zero transition plans.

The Benchmark is not a disclosure mechanism or database itself. Rather, it is an evaluation tool for investor engagement that can be used by investors, all of whom will have differing mandates and starting points together with considerations of jurisdiction, regulation and best practice, from which they make their own decisions.

- 1. Ambition: A long term 2050 goal
- 2. Targets: Short- and medium-term; scope 1, 2 and material scope 3 emissions
- 3. Emissions performance relative to targets
- 4. Disclosure of emissions
- 5. Decarbonisation strategy: A quantified plan to deliver GHG targets, green revenues targets

Other metrics cont.

- 6. Capital Allocation Alignment: capital expenditures consistent with Net Zero by 2050
- 7. Climate Policy Engagement: Paris Agreement- aligned climate (direct and indirect) lobbying
- 8. Climate Governance: Oversight of transition planning and executive remuneration linked to targets and transition
- 9. Just transition: Consideration of transition on workers and communities

10. Climate risk and accounts: Transition risk TCFD disclosures and incorporating risks into financial accounts

Global High Alpha Equities

Introduction

| Total fund value | | Absolute carbon emissions | | Carbon inter | |
|------------------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-----------------|---------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £3,742m | £4,148m | 271,059 | 200,773 | 74 | 49 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide global equity market exposure together with excess returns from accessing leading managers.

Portfolio Approach

The portfolio comprises global equities (primarily developed), diversified by sector and geography. The portfolio holds assets in currencies other than sterling and this currency exposure will not be hedged.

Carbon Emissions

The WACI is materially lower than the benchmark as a result of the portfolio's underweight exposure to carbon intensive sectors such as Utilities, Energy and Materials. Three of the top five contributors to WACI are Materials companies: Steel Dynamics (metals and mining), UPM-Kymmene (paper and forest products), and Holcim (construction materials). As a cement manufacturer, Holcim has by far the largest carbon to revenue intensity of any company held in the portfolio. Holcim is investing in carbon reduction projects in Europe, while targeting a 15% reduction in product-level carbon intensity by 2030 compared to a 2020 baseline. To address the longer-term challenges of sustainable infrastructure, the company is also developing low-carbon concrete and cement. The company has a strong TPI Management Quality score of 4, and a below two-degree alignment assessment.

Disclosures

Scope 1 disclosure rates are high with full and partial disclosures accounting for 90% on a value of holdings basis and 97% on the GHG weighted method. Both measures show less reliance on modelled data than last year.

Fossil Fuels

The portfolio is underweight both Energy and Extractives activities in aggregate. Within extractives, the portfolio has an overweight to Tar sands extraction driven by the holding in MEG Energy (with a small contribution from Conoco Phillips). This has reduced since last year following the sale of Suncor Energy after a change in focus at the company resulted in the investment manager changing their assessment of Suncor to 'not aligned' as set out in the Brunel Climate Policy. MEG is the largest contributor to Fossil Fuel revenue exposure in the portfolio and has a challenging route to net zero alignment. The investment manager is engaging with the company on an ongoing basis with the objective of driving progress towards net zero alignment and has set clear milestones for monitoring progress towards this in the short and medium term.

Global High Alpha Equities

Introduction

MEG have a TPI management score of 3, and the company represents the potential to effect real world change through its opportunity to divert product to the asphalt market (thereby significantly reducing scope 3 emissions), however, the carbon risks remain significant and therefore the company remains an engagement priority.

The portfolio's future emissions from reserves are below benchmark having reduced significantly since last year due to the reduction in Coal and Oil reserve exposures. Two of the five largest contributors to Fossil Fuel emissions from reserves from last year, Suncor and Anglo American, were removed from the portfolio during 2023 and are therefore not reflected in this data, dated end December 2023.

Global High Alpha Equities v MSCI World



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-Revenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---|-------|---------------|---------------|
| Steel Dynan | nics, Inc. | 837 | 1.12% | -7.76% |
| UPM-Kymm | ene Oyj | 1,327 | 0.59% | -6.73% |
| InterContine | ental Hotels Group | 1,022 | 0.76% | -6.55% |
| Delta Air Lin | es, Inc. | 884 | 0.78% | -5.71% |
| Holcim AG | | 4,033 | 0.13% | -4.87% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 15% | 46% |
| Modelled | 2% | 11% |
| Partial Disclosure | 82% | 44% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| • | | |
|------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
| MEG Energy Corp. | 0.40% | 0.32% |
| ConocoPhillips | 0.26% | 0.26% |
| Shell plc | 1.04% | 0.17% |
| Glencore plc | 0.22% | 0.02% |
| UPM-Kymmene Oyj | 0.59% | 0.01% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Industry breakdown of fossil fuel related activities

Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 2022 | | FY 2023 | |
|----------------|---------|------|---------|------|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. |
| Coal | 1.46 | 1.05 | 0.57 | 0.85 |
| Oil | 3.85 | 2.42 | 1.79 | 2.19 |
| Gas | 0.26 | 1.30 | 0.36 | 1.34 |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio. Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

Global High Alpha Equities

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | 2-3°C | 2-3°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | 373,209 | 781,583 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | 222,043 | 291,750 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | -49,172 | -145,851 |



Portfolio Benchmark

Absolute apportioned tCO2e expected (Under)/Over 2°C carbon budget

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Bottom | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| Steel Dynamics, Inc. | 1.12% | 186,712 | 34,124,719 | |
| Shell plc | 1.04% | 77,317 | 879,091,558 | |
| Phillips 66 | 0.16% | 40,180 | 192,628,604 | |
| UPM-Kymmene Oyj | 0.59% | 30,826 | 70,140,635 | |
| Glencore plc | 0.22% | 24,724 | 519,921,027 | |
| MercadoLibre, Inc. | 0.78% | 15,537 | 2,241,288 | |
| ConocoPhillips | 0.26% | 14,164 | 245,652,282 | |
| Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. | 0.70% | 10,051 | 10,713,560 | |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.76% | 7,726 | 34,115,753 | |
| HCA Healthcare, Inc. | 1.12% | 7,494 | 41,583,959 | |

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| MEG Energy Corp. | 0.40% | -64,302 | 55,331,880 | |
| Amazon.com, Inc. | 4.01% | -53,684 | 468,817,029 | |
| Holcim AG | 0.13% | -49,527 | 2,689,430,497 | |
| Delta Air Lines, Inc. | 0.78% | -12,367 | 707,087,367 | |
| Kamigumi Co., Ltd. | 0.19% | -12,358 | 5,205,557 | |
| Bayer Aktiengesellschaft | 0.35% | -7,371 | 125,392,610 | |
| DSV A/S | 0.10% | -7,187 | 93,004,169 | |
| The Kroger Co. | 0.25% | -4,952 | 133,105,014 | |
| Reliance, Inc. | 0.76% | -4,862 | 6,656,921 | |
| NIKE, Inc. | 0.96% | -3,887 | 18,789,013 | |

The portfolio is not currently aligned to the Paris agreement, with a warming estimate of 2-3°C. However, the portfolio is closer to alignment than the benchmark, as demonstrated by the absolute apportioned tCO2e alignment gap, which is c.23% lower than the benchmark.

The largest contributors and detractors to the portfolio's emissions reduction goals are highlighted in the tables. MEG is showing as the highest contributor to emissions reduction goals. MEG has had a consistent (and significant) carbon footprint over time. The company has an improved intensity measure over recent periods due to increased gross profits post Covid (the measure used is an intensity-based approach looking at how much a company emits relative to their profit). Given the high level of alignment risk with MEG, the investment manager continues to engage directly with the company to address these risks and has set milestones to assess transition alignment progress for the company over time (as referred to above). This illustrates some of the challenges with the methodologies used to assess Paris Alignment.

Global High Alpha Equities

Physical risk

Financial impact composite score



Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high



Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

| Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|---------------|--|---|---|---|
| 0.13% | 127 | 7.75 | 72 | 52 |
| 0.22% | 4 | 7.29 | 73 | 42 |
| 1.31% | 12 | 7.19 | 85 | 17 |
| 2.76% | 90 | 7.05 | 76 | 18 |
| 1.62% | 22 | 6.84 | 73 | 28 |
| 0.37% | 29 | 6.62 | 70 | 59 |
| 0.27% | 6 | 6.06 | 70 | 49 |
| 0.49% | 29 | 5.99 | 71 | 24 |
| 0.92% | 98 | 5.84 | 77 | 44 |
| 0.49% | 27 | 5.82 | 67 | 25 |
| | (%) 0.13% 0.22% 1.31% 2.76% 1.62% 0.37% 0.27% 0.49% 0.92% | Asset count 0.13% 127 0.22% 4 1.31% 12 2.76% 90 1.62% 22 0.37% 29 0.27% 6 0.49% 29 0.92% 98 | (%)Asset countcomposite score0.13%1277.750.22%47.291.31%127.192.76%907.051.62%226.840.37%296.620.27%66.060.49%295.990.92%985.84 | Asset count composite score Composite score 0.13% 127 7.75 72 0.22% 4 7.29 73 1.31% 12 7.19 85 2.76% 90 7.05 76 1.62% 22 6.84 73 0.37% 29 6.62 70 0.27% 6 6.06 70 0.49% 29 5.99 71 0.92% 98 5.84 77 |

Physical risk analysis shows that the portfolio is in line with that of the benchmark and displays a similar composite score for both the 2030 and 2050 timeframes.

With regards to particular risks, at the 2050 timeframe there is a notable difference in water stress risk where the portfolio carries less risk than the benchmark. Conversely, the portfolio appears to be more exposed to extreme heat risk than the benchmark, with Novartis AG being the holding that has the largest financial impact.

Climate-related Product Report

Global High Alpha Equities

Carbon earnings at risk



EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Datadog, Inc. | 0.18% | 459.51% |
| Delta Air Lines, Inc. | 0.80% | 321.25% |
| Holcim AG | 0.14% | 151.22% |
| Phillips 66 | 0.16% | 82.57% |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.78% | 44.59% |





EBITDA at risk % - 2040

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Datadog, Inc. | 0.18% | 675.23% |
| Delta Air Lines, Inc. | 0.80% | 498.88% |
| Holcim AG | 0.14% | 236.47% |
| Phillips 66 | 0.16% | 119.01% |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.78% | 70.14% |

EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Datadog, Inc. | 0.18% | 761.87% |
| Delta Air Lines, Inc. | 0.80% | 570.55% |
| Holcim AG | 0.14% | 270.23% |
| Phillips 66 | 0.16% | 133.75% |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.78% | 79.87% |

The charts show the percentage of company earnings at risk from unpriced carbon at the aggregate portfolio level across 3 scenarios. The companies with the largest amount of their earnings at risk in the 'High' scenario are shown in the tables and are the same names across all time periods.

On a relative basis, the unpriced carbon risk within the portfolio is less than that of the benchmark, and the portfolio would see a smaller reduction in EBITDA margin due to unpriced carbon costs across all periods.

Global Sustainable Equities

Introduction

| Total fun | Total fund value | | Absolute carbon emissions | | to value nsity |
|-----------|------------------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-------------------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £3,185m | £3,470m | 204,784 | 188,100 | 66 | 55 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide exposure to the global sustainable equities market, including excess returns from manager skill and ESG considerations.

Portfolio Approach

The portfolio uses a broader strategy consideration of environmental and social sustainability to identify companies and investment themes able to succeed long term through contributing to society. It builds on, but goes beyond, our active approach to corporate governance, and consideration of environmental and social factors, particularly when they represent potential risks to investor capital.

Carbon Emissions

With regards to the WACI of the portfolio, we can see that it is marginally below that of the MSCI ACWI benchmark. The largest contributors to the portfolio's WACI are securities that mostly sit within Materials and Industrials sectors. However, we should note that the stocks themselves can be described as solution-based businesses that have a credible future transition pathways to de-carbonise themselves as well as the sectors in which they operate. For instance, two of the largest contributors to WACI are waste management companies, Waste Management Inc and Republic Services, which sit within the industrials sector. These avoid harmful emissions, a dimension of carbon intensity, which is not captured in the WACI calculation. It is therefore no surprise that you would often find these companies at the top of green revenue contribution reports.

Disclosures

For scope 1 disclosures we to see that the portfolio is relatively well covered in terms of full disclosures and partial disclosures, with very little need for modelling.

Fossil Fuels

With regards to the Fossil Fuel related activities the portfolio has no exposure to extractive business practices but does have exposure to Power Generation related to Fossil fuels. However, we should note that these companies are currently on a transition pathway and it is therefore important that we focus on their future trajectory. For instance, NextEra Energy has made and continues to make significant investments in renewable energy and storage projects; it is already the largest corporate generator of renewable
Global Sustainable Equities

Introduction

electricity in the world, implying substantial climate benefit. The majority of the company's capital expenditures are allocated to the development of low-carbon technologies, infrastructure or projects. Further, NextEra Energy stressed in 2021 it now aims to continuously reduce its CO2 emissions rate until it reaches zero by no later than 2045 and has released its Zero Carbon Blueprint. The company's decarbonization ambition appears consistent with the company's recent achievements and willingness to speed up renewable energy developments.

We should also note that the fund has no exposure to fossil fuel reserves.

Global Sustainable Equities v MSCI ACWI



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-Revenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---|-------|---------------|---------------|
| Waste Man | agement, Inc. | 1,976 | 1.69% | -15.63% |
| L'Air Liquide | S.A. | 1,612 | 1.20% | -8.80% |
| Republic Se | rvices, Inc. | 1,934 | 0.91% | -8.09% |
| Linde plc | | 1,483 | 0.91% | -6.03% |
| NextEra Ene | rgy, Inc. | 2,570 | 0.46% | -5.63% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 47% | 49% |
| Modelled | 6% | 7% |
| Partial Disclosure | 47% | 45% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|----------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.46% | 0.21% |
| Fortis Inc. | 0.58% | 0.10% |
| L'Air Liquide S.A. | 1.20% | 0.06% |
| Edison International | 0.46% | 0.03% |
| Iberdrola, S.A. | 0.62% | 0.02% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 2022 FY 2023 | | 2023 | |
|----------------|-----------------|------|-------|------|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. |
| Coal | 0.00 | 1.99 | 0.00 | 1.87 |
| Oil | 0.00 | 1.99 | 0.00 | 1.86 |
| Gas | 0.00 | 1.02 | 0.00 | 1.07 |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.00 | 0.01 | 0.00 | 0.01 |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio.

Global Sustainable Equities

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | 2-3°C | 2-3°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | 206,246 | 660,888 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | 80,101 | 208,729 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | -220,089 | -299,122 |

Absolute apportioned tCO2e expected (Under)/Over 2°C carbon budget



Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Bottom | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) |
| L'Air Liquide S.A. | 1.20% | 51,087 | 343,129,023 |
| Linde plc | 0.91% | 24,100 | 400,508,543 |
| WestRock Company | 0.34% | 19,145 | 94,295,669 |
| Cleanaway Waste Management Limited | 0.24% | 14,001 | 8,483,303 |
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.46% | 13,974 | 661,912,507 |
| First Quantum Minerals Ltd. | 0.12% | 13,552 | 15,359,852 |
| Fortis Inc. | 0.58% | 10,818 | 113,674,583 |
| East Japan Railway Company | 0.34% | 8,630 | 25,065,280 |
| GFL Environmental Inc. | 0.48% | 8,421 | 50,953,275 |
| National Grid plc | 0.56% | 7,127 | 107,608,306 |
| | | | |

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alig | (Under)/over budget | | |
|---------------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) |
| Iberdrola, S.A. | 0.62% | -34,210 | 555,670,764 |
| Edison International | 0.46% | -26,448 | 136,171,335 |
| Micron Technology, Inc. | 0.30% | -15,678 | 238,623,151 |
| Eversource Energy | 0.55% | -14,171 | 46,312,927 |
| Republic Services, Inc. | 0.91% | -13,791 | 255,458,021 |
| DSM-Firmenich AG | 0.39% | -13,009 | 57,762,855 |
| Amazon.com, Inc. | 1.14% | -12,758 | 468,817,029 |
| Neste Oyj | 0.31% | -8,801 | 71,637,677 |
| Tractor Supply Company | 0.38% | -4,189 | 8,317,856 |
| Vestas Wind Systems A/S | 1.23% | -2,641 | 3,487,719 |

The fund and the benchmark are aligned to 2-3°C, however the fund is much closer to 2°C alignment than that of the benchmark, and has half the apportioned CO2 absolute emissions before it meets the 2°C alignment threshold. As per previous Carbon emissions metrics, the alignment of the portfolio is negatively affected by securities within the Materials and Industrials sectors. The modelled outcomes do not take into consideration the transition plans of the mis-aligned companies, which gives us confidence we will see better real-world results than those shown above.

Global Sustainable Equities

Physical risk

Financial impact composite score



Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high



Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

| Name | Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|---------------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| Hexagon AB (publ) | 0.26% | 25 | 18.97 | 79 | 56 |
| Iberdrola, S.A. | 0.62% | 9,938 | 8.17 | 77 | 68 |
| The Home Depot, Inc. | 0.51% | 1,753 | 7.40 | 75 | 45 |
| ASML Holding N.V. | 1.85% | 12 | 7.19 | 85 | 17 |
| Alphabet Inc. | 1.03% | 90 | 7.05 | 76 | 18 |
| Novo Nordisk A/S | 1.28% | 22 | 6.84 | 73 | 28 |
| Siemens Aktiengesellschaft | 0.25% | 321 | 6.60 | 74 | 43 |
| Münchener | 0.68% | 128 | 6.50 | 76 | 4 |
| TE Connectivity Ltd. | 0.27% | 41 | 6.13 | 84 | 52 |
| Svenska Handelsbanken AB (publ) | 0.14% | 751 | 6.10 | 68 | 19 |

Physical risk analysis displays that the portfolio is in line with that of the benchmark and displays similar composite score and sensitivity to each potential risk event.

Global Sustainable Equities

Carbon earnings at risk

EBITDA at risk % - 2030



10.0% 8.0% 6.0% 4.0% 2.0% 0.0% Low Medium High



EBITDA at risk % - 2040

EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Republic Services, Inc. | 0.91% | 56.02% |
| Cleanaway Waste Management Limited | 0.24% | 49.86% |
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.46% | 48.62% |
| GFL Environmental Inc. | 0.48% | 48.45% |
| L'Air Liquide S.A. | 1.20% | 48.00% |

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Republic Services, Inc. | 0.91% | 79.32% |
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.46% | 78.19% |
| L'Air Liquide S.A. | 1.20% | 77.35% |
| Cleanaway Waste Management Limited | 0.24% | 70.60% |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.58% | 70.14% |

EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| NextEra Energy, Inc. | 0.46% | 89.72% |
| L'Air Liquide S.A. | 1.20% | 88.96% |
| Republic Services, Inc. | 0.91% | 88.73% |
| InterContinental Hotels Group PLC | 0.58% | 79.87% |
| Cleanaway Waste Management Limited | 0.24% | 78.98% |

The unpriced carbon risk of the portfolio is in line with that of the benchmark, which is not highlighted above. As per the previous metrics, EBITDA at risk is being largely driven by securities within the Industrials and Materials sectors. However, we should note, similar to WACI, carbon at risk numbers do not take into consideration future projections and targets of those solution-based businesses, who are on a transition pathway, but the calculations focus on where the company is today. The above calculations do also not consider emissions avoided that may also be acknowledged in the future.

Brunel Pension Partnership Forging better futures

Introduction

| Total fun | d value | Absolute carbon emissions | | Carbon inter | |
|-----------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-----------------|---------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 Q4 2023 | | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £1,382m | £1,259m | 189,219 | 113,313 | 142 | 92 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide exposure to UK equities, together with enhanced returns from manager skill.

Portfolio Approach

Investing in the UK equity market avoids direct currency risk, benefits from the high standards of governance and transparency in the UK, and provides access to a wide range of companies with UK and global exposure. However, the market is somewhat imbalanced from a sector perspective and concentrated in a relatively small number of leading names. These aspects of the UK market create opportunities for skilled managers to add long term value through better portfolio construction and stock selection. Managers may invest in an "unconstrained" fashion paying little or no attention to the benchmark constituents or weights.

Carbon Emissions

The WACI is materially lower than the benchmark as a result of the portfolio's underweight exposure to the most carbon intensive sectors such as Utilities, Energy and Materials. The top three contributors (Rio Tinto, Shell, and BP) are all held underweight versus the benchmark.

Disclosures

Scope 1 disclosure rates are high with full and partial disclosures accounting for nearly 100% on both value of holdings and GHG weighted methods. Both measures show less reliance on modelled data than last year.

Fossil Fuels

The portfolio is underweight both Energy and Extractives activities in aggregate. Shell is the largest contributor to fossil fuel revenue exposure on a weighted basis. Shell has committed to achieving Net Zero emissions by 2050 or sooner and has a positive TPI management score of 4. Although the company represents the potential to effect real world change, the carbon risks are significant. Extensive engagement through Brunel's internal team, engagement provider Federated Hermes, and Climate Action 100+, aims to hold Shell accountable to its targets. In response to perceived weakening in climate positioning after last year's announcements at Shell's capital markets day, Brunel has escalated engagement with the company by co-filing a shareholder resolution in 2024 led by Follow This. The resolution calls for Shell to set medium-term targets for scope three greenhouse gas emissions consistent with efforts to limit global warming to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels.

UK Active Equities

Introduction

Future emissions from reserves are significantly below benchmark. Both the benchmark and the portfolio have reduced emissions from reserves across the board compared to 2022. One of the largest five contributors to Fossil Fuel emissions from reserves from last year left the portfolio during 2023 (Anglo American). Glencore is the single remaining contributor to fossil fuel emissions from coal reserves within the portfolio.

UK Active Equities v FTSE All Share ex Inv Tr



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-Revenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|---------------|---|---------------|---------------|
| Rio Tinto Gro | 808 gud | 2.80% | -17.13% |
| Shell plc | 263 | 4.52% | -5.97% |
| BP p.l.c. | 394 | 2.13% | -5.20% |
| Breedon Gro | oup plc 1,417 | 0.41% | -4.60% |
| Unilever PLC | : 177 | 4.83% | -2.66% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 29% | 29% |
| Modelled | 0% | 1% |
| Partial Disclosure | 71% | 70% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|--------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| Shell plc | 4.52% | 0.75% |
| BP p.l.c. | 2.13% | 0.68% |
| Harbour Energy plc | 0.53% | 0.53% |
| Glencore plc | 2.53% | 0.22% |
| EnQuest PLC | 0.13% | 0.13% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 2 | FY 2022 | | FY 2023 | |
|----------------|-------|---------|-------|---------|--|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. | |
| Coal | 3.07 | 3.29 | 1.99 | 2.47 | |
| Oil | 1.39 | 1.71 | 0.36 | 0.65 | |
| Gas | 1.08 | 1.67 | 0.58 | 1.12 | |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.14 | 0.03 | 0.10 | 0.01 | |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio.

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | 2-3°C | 2-3°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | 212,504 | 292,277 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | 160,013 | 150,566 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | -16,786 | -81,611 |





GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment (Under)/over budget Weight apportioned Total emissions (2012 - 2030)Bottom emissions (%) 879,091,558 Shell plc 4.52% 102,322 Glencore plc 2.53% 86,592 519,921,027 BP p.l.c. 2.13% 31,849 744,379,118 DS Smith Plc 0.32% 17,372 9,588,634 9,968 Melrose Industries PLC 0.76% 2,146,104 Keller Group plc 0.23% 189,734 8,497 Tate & Lyle plc 35,071,037 0.10% 5,675

0.46%

1.00%

1.17%

4,834

4,533

3,925

37,144,731

2,443,523

1,507,888

Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

Associated British Foods plc

The Weir Group PLC

Babcock International Group PLC

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| Rio Tinto Group | 2.80% | -68,686 | 753,883,948 | |
| EnQuest PLC | 0.13% | -16,235 | 30,038,647 | |
| Centrica plc | 1.15% | -15,121 | 54,546,338 | |
| Genus plc | 0.28% | -11,696 | 6,944,747 | |
| Aviva plc | 1.28% | -8,685 | 11,233,589 | |
| Harbour Energy plc | 0.53% | -2,888 | 27,530,787 | |
| Bodycote plc | 0.49% | -2,296 | 5,958,896 | |
| Endeavour Mining plc | 0.03% | -2,096 | 31,035,758 | |
| QinetiQ Group plc | 0.09% | -1,925 | 4,601,237 | |
| Hill & Smith PLC | 0.29% | -1,645 | 1,811,559 | |

The portfolio is not currently aligned to the Paris agreement, with a warming estimate of 2-3°C. The portfolio has a similar alignment to the benchmark, as demonstrated by the absolute apportioned tCO2e alignment gap.

The largest contributors and detractors to the portfolio's emissions reduction goals are highlighted in the tables.

Physical risk



Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high



Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

| Name | Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|------------------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| Network International Holdings plc | 0.06% | 1 | 8.48 | 76 | 40 |
| Vodafone Group Public Limited | 0.77% | 457 | 8.45 | 69 | 13 |
| TBC Bank Group PLC | 0.09% | 133 | 7.49 | 73 | 44 |
| OSB Group Plc | 0.26% | 5 | 6.21 | 71 | 27 |
| Reckitt Benckiser Group plc | 1.10% | 39 | 4.99 | 77 | 45 |
| Marks and Spencer Group plc | 1.99% | 1,088 | 4.97 | 72 | 39 |
| Tesco PLC | 0.35% | 2,817 | 4.92 | 71 | 42 |
| J Sainsbury plc | 0.06% | 2,184 | 4.92 | 71 | 38 |
| AstraZeneca PLC | 5.72% | 87 | 4.89 | 70 | 27 |
| NEXT plc | 0.48% | 506 | 4.89 | 70 | 32 |

Physical risk analysis shows that the portfolio is roughly in line with that of the benchmark for 2030 composite score and below that of the benchmark for the 2050 measure.

With regards to particular risks at the 2050 timeframe, the largest financial impact for both benchmark and portfolio is extreme heat, impacting both portfolio and benchmark on a similar scale. There is a notable difference in water stress risk, where the portfolio carries less risk than the benchmark.

Carbon earnings at risk

8.0% 6.0% 4.0% 2.0% 0.0% Low Medium High

EBITDA at risk % - 2030

EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|-------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| TUI AG | 0.15% | 64.56% |
| easyJet plc | 0.07% | 59.34% |
| Tate & Lyle plc | 0.10% | 54.96% |
| Ocado Group plc | 0.19% | 47.73% |
| Breedon Group plc | 0.41% | 33.40% |

Weight

Unpriced carbon cost

/ EBITDA 96.95%

> 87.39% 82.50%

70.44%

69.68%



EBITDA at risk % - 2040

| | | (, , , |
|--|-------------------|--------|
| | TUI AG | 0.15% |
| | easyJet plc | 0.07% |
| | Tate & Lyle plc | 0.10% |
| | Breedon Group plc | 0.41% |
| | Ocado Group plc | 0.19% |
| | | |
| | | |

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

Name

EBITDA at risk % - 2050



EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|-------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| TUI AG | 0.15% | 109.84% |
| easyJet plc | 0.07% | 99.68% |
| Tate & Lyle plc | 0.10% | 93.63% |
| Breedon Group plc | 0.41% | 85.37% |
| Ocado Group plc | 0.19% | 78.46% |

The charts show the percentage of company earnings at risk from unpriced carbon at the aggregate portfolio level across 3 scenarios. The companies with the largest amount of their earnings at risk in the 'High' scenario are shown in the tables and are the same names across all time periods.

On a relative basis the unpriced carbon risk within the portfolio is less than that of the benchmark, and the portfolio would see a smaller reduction in EBITDA margin due to unpriced carbon costs across all periods.

Emerging Markets Equities

Introduction

| Total fund value | | Absolute carbon emissions | | Carbon inter | |
|------------------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-----------------|---------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £1,044m | £967m | 165,115 | 119,994 | 163 | 127 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide exposure to emerging markets equities, together with excess returns and enhanced risk control.

Portfolio Approach

Emerging and frontier economies typically are expected to achieve higher long-term growth rates than developed economies, and, in many cases, are seeing the emergence of a middle class, rising education and improving institutions and infrastructure. Information and market inefficiencies with emerging markets should create opportunities for active managers. Opportunities can arise at both a macro and micro (company) level. Good managers, however, also need to be able to manage the increased risk and challenges of emerging markets.

Carbon Emissions

The portfolio maintains a weighted average carbon intensity significantly below benchmark. The current discount vs benchmark is 52% when measured on a direct, scope 2 and scope 3 emissions basis. The discount is primarily driven by the portfolio's underexposure to Energy, Materials and Utilities. The collective underweight position in these sectors is currently -8.6% vs benchmark.

Cement producers and utilities dominate the top contributors to weighted average carbon intensity. China Longyuan – the largest wind producer in Asia – has legacy coal assets which make up most of the carbon intensity. Brunel are comfortable with this position given the company no longer provides capital expenditure to this part of the business and ultimately intends to phase coal out of its business. Ambuja Cements and Anhui Conch, which are cement producers in India and China respectively, contribute significantly to the portfolio WACI. Both names are held by the same manager, within their material allocation due to their sector neutral approach. Brunel are happy to hold both names given that Ambuja and Anhui Conch have satisfactory TPI management scores of 3 and 4 respectively. Anhui Conch has yet to disclose its scope 3 emissions, which will be a key point on engagement going forward.

Disclosures

Emerging markets remain challenging for company disclosures. Full and partial scope 1 disclosures account for 41 and 40% respectively when measured on a GHG-weighted basis. The results are similar when weighted on a value weighted basis. There have been no material changes to note in coverage over the past year.

Emerging Markets Equities

Introduction

Fossil Fuels

The portfolio is typically underexposed to fossil fuel related activities compared to the benchmark due to the underweight positions in Energy and Materials. The most significant industries within fossil fuel activities were Crude Petroleum and Natural Gas Extraction, which have more exposure vs benchmark. This is entirely driven by Energy portfolio holdings, held by one manager. The manager is in the process of finalising their net zero framework, which may result in changes to composition within their Energy portfolio as they aim to comply with Brunel's Climate Change Policy.

Three out of the top five contributors to fossil fuel revenues are Oil companies held in the same manager's portfolio. Examples of this include PTT Exploration and Petrobras who show a lack of alignment today. However, both companies have above average transparency giving them potential to align. Petrobras also commands a strong TPI management score of 4, which means the company is undertaking a strategic assessment on alignment. Both names remain in scope for engagement.

Future emissions for the portfolio remain significantly below benchmark, with the most recent observations showing near zero reserves intensity and future reserves from emissions. Oil and Gas make up all the future emissions for the portfolio. The primary driver for these results is once again from the Energy portion of one manager, given that the other two managers currently have zero exposure to Energy.

Emerging Markets Equities v MSCI Emerging Markets



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name Carbon-to | Carbon-to-Revenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | | Contr. (%) |
|----------------------------|---|-------|---------------|
| Ambuja Cements Limite | d 6,971 | 0.29% | -8.13% |
| Anhui Conch Cement | 13,246 | 0.11% | -6.01% |
| LG Corp. | 3,042 | 0.36% | -4.14% |
| China Longyuan Power | Group 2,471 | 0.41% | -3.74% |
| Inner Mongolia Yili Indust | rial 943 | 1.20% | -3.48% |

The **WACI** shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio.



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 41% | 35% |
| Modelled | 19% | 25% |
| Partial Disclosure | 40% | 40% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|--------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| PTT Exploration and Production | 0.32% | 0.32% |
| Parex Resources Inc. | 0.27% | 0.27% |
| China Longyuan Power Group | 0.41% | 0.12% |
| Samsung Engineering Co., Ltd. | 0.24% | 0.11% |
| Petróleo Brasileiro S.A | 0.19% | 0.07% |

The **Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities** chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| | | . , | | | |
|----------------|-------|---------|-------|---------|--|
| Source | FY 20 | FY 2022 | | FY 2023 | |
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. | |
| Coal | 0.32 | 3.50 | 0.09 | 3.27 | |
| Oil | 0.24 | 0.53 | 0.26 | 0.59 | |
| Gas | 0.10 | 0.15 | 0.13 | 0.17 | |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.00 | 0.02 | 0.00 | 0.02 | |
| | 0.00 | 0.02 | 0.00 | 0.02 | |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio.

Brunel Pension Partnership Forging better futures

Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

Emerging Markets Equities

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | >3°C | 1.5-2°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | 337,771 | 200,645 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | 256,697 | -25,873 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | 61,919 | -504,018 |

Absolute apportioned tCO2e expected (Under)/Over 2°C carbon budget



| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | |
|--|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Bottom | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) |
| Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited | 0.11% | 106,985 | 1,613,490,523 |
| Ternium S.A. | 0.34% | 40,704 | 651,932,995 |
| OCI N.V. | 0.23% | 22,724 | 64,282,392 |
| China National Building Material Company Limited | 0.09% | 21,654 | 3,529,894,473 |
| Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited | 0.21% | 14,852 | 121,605,271 |
| Guangdong Haid Group Co., Limited | 0.38% | 14,476 | 8,265,544 |
| MOL Magyar Olaj- és Gázipari Nyilvánosan Muködo Részvénytársaság | 0.16% | 12,477 | 94,210,628 |
| Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited | 0.16% | 10,493 | 46,949,962 |
| Mobile World Investment Corporation | 0.34% | 9,251 | 4,145,796 |
| Companhia de Saneamento Básico do Estado de São Paulo - SABESP | 0.49% | 8,672 | 18,512,767 |
| | | | |

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree align | HG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | | |
|---|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| SK hynix Inc. | 1.37% | -49,066 | 431,359,327 | |
| JD.com, Inc. | 0.52% | -13,156 | 122,662,593 | |
| OCI Holdings Company Ltd. | 0.07% | -10,734 | 64,886,395 | |
| CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Limited | 0.48% | -9,577 | 29,632,474 | |
| SK Innovation Co., Ltd. | 0.12% | -7,255 | 340,749,106 | |
| Anglo American plc | 0.41% | -6,829 | 384,355,514 | |
| Ambuja Cements Limited | 0.29% | -4,143 | 224,017,948 | |
| China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited | 0.41% | -4,139 | 153,995,375 | |
| Gold Fields Limited | 0.09% | -3,594 | 88,949,379 | |
| Nanya Technology Corporation | 0.41% | -3,015 | 11,613,001 | |

The portfolio is not currently aligned to the Paris agreement, with a warming estimate of >3°C. This is unsurprising given the nature of energy generation in emerging market economies. For example, countries like India and South Africa - two significant emerging market constituents - are still heavily reliant on oil and coal for power generation. Oil and coal account for more than two thirds of the energy mix for both these countries using the latest data from the IEA.

The benchmark is surprisingly showing 1.5-2°C aligned. This is due to unexpected values driven by pandemicaffected business results for some issuers, particularly affecting the underlying FY2021 data of issuers in the marine transportation GICS sub-industry. The portfolio currently has no exposure to marine transportation. The majority of the top detractors for emissions reduction are found in the energy and materials sectors.

Emerging Markets Equities

Physical risk

W eighted average asset value

0.0%

Financial impact composite score





Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high

Portfolio Benchmark

Fluvial

flood

Tropical

cyclone

Water

stress

Wildfire

Extreme

heat

Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

Drought

Coastal

flood

| Name | Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|--------------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| Hindustan Aeronautics Limited | 0.46% | 3 | 12.88 | 72 | 42 |
| OCI Holdings Company Ltd. | 0.07% | 18 | 9.03 | 76 | 68 |
| CP ALL Public Company Limited | 0.55% | 529 | 7.43 | 72 | 50 |
| Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. | 5.34% | 4 | 7.29 | 73 | 42 |
| Richter Gedeon Vegyészeti Gyár | 0.18% | 19 | 7.29 | 67 | 63 |
| OTP Bank Nyrt. | 0.60% | 2,032 | 7.19 | 69 | 36 |
| Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd. | 0.13% | 426 | 6.92 | 74 | 22 |
| KT Corporation | 0.19% | 21 | 6.72 | 73 | 26 |
| Unimicron Technology Corp. | 0.26% | 6 | 6.52 | 83 | 79 |
| China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. | 0.37% | 1,882 | 6.43 | 72 | 26 |

The portfolio has a similar amount of physical risk to the benchmark under various climate scenarios for the 2030 horizon. The portfolio becomes more underexposed to physical risks under various scenarios for the 2050 horizon.

There is a notable difference in water stress risk, where the portfolio carries significantly less risk than the benchmark.

Emerging Markets Equities

Physical risk

The largest contributor to the 2050 high scenario is Hindustan Aeronautics. This is common for Indian companies given that extreme heat will become a frequent risk for vast majority of the population. There are also risks from severe flooding, which is expected to increase over the coming decades.

Emerging Markets Equities

Carbon earnings at risk

EBITDA at risk % - 2030







EBITDA at risk % - 2040

EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---|---------------|----------------------------------|
| China National Building Material Company Limited | 0.09% | 371.78% |
| Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited | 0.12% | 349.44% |
| Ambuja Cements Limited | 0.30% | 314.42% |
| Tata Steel Limited | 0.07% | 146.67% |
| POSCO Holdings Inc. | 0.14% | 103.13% |

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---|---------------|----------------------------------|
| China National Building Material Company Limited | 0.09% | 620.61% |
| Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited | 0.12% | 583.65% |
| Ambuja Cements Limited | 0.30% | 526.13% |
| Tata Steel Limited | 0.07% | 255.16% |
| POSCO Holdings Inc. | 0.14% | 155.27% |

EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|---|---------------|----------------------------------|
| China National Building Material Company Limited | 0.09% | 706.38% |
| Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited | 0.12% | 663.40% |
| Ambuja Cements Limited | 0.30% | 597.81% |
| Tata Steel Limited | 0.07% | 293.33% |
| POSCO Holdings Inc. | 0.14% | 176.29% |

The same companies contribute to the high-risk scenarios over the 2030, 2040 and 2050 horizons. Anhui Conch and Ambuja Cements - mentioned previously in the metrics section – also contribute to EBITDA at risk.

China national building materials - a cement producer - is the most significant contributor to EBITDA risk. The company has a TPI management quality rating of 2, meaning it is currently not aligned. There has been recent progress from the company, who have acknowledged climate change as a risk/opportunity and put a policy in place to action this. Brunel expect the holding manager to engage with the company to set targets for greenhouse gas emission reduction.

Emerging Markets Equities

Carbon earnings at risk

Tata Steel Limited is an Indian steel producer held in a materials sleeve. The company has a strong TPI Management Quality score of 4, although it is not currently aligned to net zero. Brunel expects the holding manager to engage with the company on incorporating climate change risks and opportunities into their strategy.

Global Small Cap Equities

Introduction

| Total fund value | | Absolute carbon emissions | | Carbon inter | |
|------------------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-----------------|---------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £854m | £924m | 69,239 | 68,716 | 84 | 77 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide exposure to global smaller company equities together with excess returns from manager skill.

Portfolio Approach

Smaller companies are defined by the relevant index provider. Some investment in medium sized stocks and non-benchmark smaller companies are be permitted. The smaller companies' effect is well established and demonstrates that smaller companies offer higher long-term returns. It may reflect higher risk, and also the practical issues of investing in smaller companies. Mandates are likely to be quite focused.

Carbon Emissions

Total portfolio WACI has reduced from 2022 to 2023. Portfolio WACI continues to be significantly lower than the benchmark. This is particularly driven by lower direct emissions in the portfolio relative to the benchmark. This is likely a result of the portfolio's underweight allocation to the Energy and Utilities sectors. The top contributors to WACI are mainly holdings in the Industrials and Materials sectors, with the highest WACI holding being Befesa. Befesa is European market leader in managing and treating industrial waste from the steel industry. It collects hazardous steel dust and recycles the zinc content out of it. Despite the carbon emissions resulting from this process, the holding manager believes that the net overall impact of Befesa's operations on the global environment is positive, as Befesa operates right in the centre of the circular economy and contributes to the re-use of steel and zinc.

Disclosures

Whilst small cap as an asset class is still lagging large cap in terms of environmental disclosures, it is encouraging that value-weighted carbon disclosure rates are slowly improving for both the portfolio and the benchmark, looking at FY2022 to FY2023 data. It is worth noting that GHG-weighted disclosures have slightly declined, however, this metric could be considered less reliable because when a company is not mapped to an EVIC value the carbon data cannot be apportioned. In contrast, the value-weighted disclosure metric, which uses the total portfolio value of holdings, can be considered more reliable. Positively, both full and partial scope 1 disclosures on a value-weighted basis have increased from FY2022 to FY2023.

Fossil Fuels

In terms of fossil fuel related activity, there is less exposure in the portfolio than the benchmark due to the underweight Energy exposure. Two managers have no exposure to Energy in their mandates, due to

Global Small Cap Equities

Introduction

environmental considerations. The portfolio, however, does have marginally higher exposure to support activities for oil and gas operations by a third manager. This manager prefers to gain exposure to the Energy sector by investing in companies which are suppliers to traditional Energy companies. The top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues come mostly from the holdings of the third manager, including Antero Resources which generates revenues primarily from natural gas. The manager considers this a transition fuel (as it has a lower emission profile than shale oil). The top contributor is Weatherford International, a multinational oil field services provider, which has set the goal of achieving Net Zero Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2050 with a primary objective to determine its tactical Net Zero 2050 roadmap, including interim reduction targets.

Positively, the portfolio is significantly lower than the benchmark when comparing future emissions from reserves and is not expected to generate any future emissions from coal reserves. This is unsurprising given the portfolio's underweight to traditional Energy companies and the responsible investment considerations of the managers.

Global Small Cap Equities v MSCI Small Cap World



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name Ca | Carbon-to-Revenue intensity (tCO2e/mGBP) | | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|-------------------|---|-------|---------------|---------------|
| Befesa S.A. | | 1,168 | 0.82% | -6.07% |
| West Fraser Timbe | r Co. Ltd. | 1,114 | 0.75% | -5.30% |
| Tronox Holdings p | lc | 1,618 | 0.47% | -4.99% |
| Summit Materials, | Inc. | 1,752 | 0.42% | -4.90% |
| Marshalls plc | | 945 | 0.53% | -3.08% |

The WACI shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 21% | 18% |
| Modelled | 17% | 40% |
| Partial Disclosure | 62% | 42% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|-------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| Weatherford International plc | 0.38% | 0.24% |
| Technip Energies N.V. | 0.20% | 0.20% |
| Transocean Ltd. | 0.20% | 0.20% |
| Aker Solutions ASA | 0.21% | 0.14% |
| Antero Resources Corporation | 0.10% | 0.09% |

The Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Coal Oil Gas 🛛 Oil and/or Gas

Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 20 | 22 | FY 20 | 23 |
|----------------|-------|------|-------|------|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. |
| Coal | 0.00 | 2.42 | 0.00 | 1.92 |
| Oil | 0.15 | 0.55 | 0.03 | 0.52 |
| Gas | 0.05 | 0.50 | 0.05 | 0.63 |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.00 | 0.01 | 0.00 | 0.00 |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio.

Global Small Cap Equities

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | <1.5°C | 1.5-2°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | -170,224 | 138,740 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | -216,183 | -4,472 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | -364,191 | -288,085 |

Absolute apportioned tCO2e expected (Under)/Over 2°C carbon budget



Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment (Under)/over budget Weight apportioned Total emissions (2012 - 2030)Bottom (%) emissions Befesa S.A. 0.82% 35.623 2.590.099 Summit Materials, Inc. 0.42% 28,660 805,240 Kronos Worldwide, Inc. 10,038,500 0.22% 14.916 Luxfer Holdings PLC 0.31% 13,929 260,472 Cabot Corporation 0.21% 12,325 56,905,044 Jabil Inc. 1.23% 9,608 13,851,985 Knight-Swift Transportation Holdings 0.31% 9,204 9,396,567 Inc. 8,834 Vesuvius plc 0.63% 5,589,158 Mueller Water Products, Inc. 0.71% 8.306 945,301 ATI Inc. 0.39% 6,347 5,583,161

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| Tronox Holdings plc | 0.47% | -331,975 | 325,966,564 | |
| Commercial Metals Company | 0.19% | -27,184 | 120,440,882 | |
| West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. | 0.75% | -11,047 | 36,946,612 | |
| Takuma Co., Ltd. | 0.58% | -7,316 | 1,902,972 | |
| NV Bekaert SA | 0.54% | -5,175 | 26,212,684 | |
| Antero Resources Corporation | 0.10% | -3,666 | 35,920,872 | |
| Nippon Gas Co., Ltd. | 0.24% | -3,332 | 2,903,681 | |
| HASEKO Corporation | 0.46% | -2,487 | 3,680,891 | |
| Strategic Education, Inc. | 0.71% | -2,394 | 2,380,142 | |
| Samsonite International S.A. | 0.62% | -2,235 | 2,294,834 | |

We would express caution in reviewing the output as the methodological limitations are particularly pronounced with smaller companies where the company's share of emissions is determined by its gross profit, rather than an assessment of its activities.

Apportioned tCO2e for the portfolio is expected to be significantly below the 2°C carbon budget, which compares favourably to the benchmark. Positively, the portfolio currently aligns with the Paris Agreement, with less than 1.5°C expected level of warming. This is better than the benchmark which is forecasted to have 1.5-2°C warming. The lack of exposure to Energy companies, and the overweight to sectors such as Technology, may be contributing to the expected lower levels of warming relative to the benchmark. Each of the three managers integrates ESG risk (including climate risk) into their bottom-up security analysis which is also likely to have a positive impact on such metrics. The worst portfolio performer to emissions reductions

Global Small Cap Equities

Paris alignment

goals is Befesa, as mentioned on previous pages. In contrast, one of the best performers is a chemicals company, Tronox, as the company is significantly under their budget for apportioned emissions.

Global Small Cap Equities

Physical risk





Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high



Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

| Name | Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|------------------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| SPIE SA | 0.32% | 63 | 17.52 | 81 | 45 |
| Sacyr, S.A. | 0.39% | 26 | 9.44 | 83 | 67 |
| First Solar, Inc. | 0.90% | 53 | 8.11 | 78 | 61 |
| Huntington Bancshares Incorporated | 0.09% | 1,153 | 7.09 | 71 | 24 |
| Bachem Holding AG | 0.41% | 2 | 7.02 | 64 | 35 |
| Commerce Bancshares, Inc. | 0.39% | 160 | 6.78 | 71 | 27 |
| ATS Corporation | 0.31% | 3 | 6.66 | 82 | 78 |
| Mebuki Financial Group,Inc. | 0.41% | 294 | 6.59 | 74 | 29 |
| BPER Banca SpA | 0.39% | 1,763 | 6.49 | 78 | 29 |
| Canadian Western Bank | 0.74% | 44 | 5.92 | 71 | 24 |

In each scenario, the portfolio's expected financial impact from physical risk is broadly in line with the benchmark. The most significant physical risk is expected from extreme heat. There is expected to be limited portfolio physical risk from coastal flooding, drought, tropical cyclones and wildfires, which is likely related to the physical premise locations of the company holdings. The top ten contributors to portfolio level physical risk by financial impact are mainly banks, including Huntington Bancshares, Commerce Bancshares and Canadian Western Bank. However, the top contributor is SPIE S.A., a diversified support services provider. SPIE is involved in the green energy markets and sustainable infrastructure value chain, offering products utilized in the production, storage, and distribution of renewable energy, as well as products for the

Global Small Cap Equities

Physical risk

electrification of transportation, however, there is currently no evidence of disclosure around the mitigation of physical climate risks. The holding manager has recommend engagement in this area.

Global Small Cap Equities

Carbon earnings at risk

10.0% U npriced Carbon Cost as % EBITDA 8.0% 6.0% 4.0% 2.0% 0.0% Medium High Low

EBITDA at risk % - 2030

EBITDA at risk % - 2040 10.0% Unpriced Carbon Cost as % EBITDA 8.0% 6.0% 4.0% 2 0%





EBITDA at risk % - 2050

EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Japan Airport Terminal Co., Ltd. | 0.20% | 93.49% |
| Cabot Corporation | 0.22% | 85.62% |
| Freshpet, Inc. | 0.27% | 83.63% |
| Befesa S.A. | 0.84% | 61.39% |
| Tronox Holdings plc | 0.48% | 54.44% |

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Japan Airport Terminal Co., Ltd. | 0.20% | 135.15% |
| Cabot Corporation | 0.22% | 133.22% |
| Freshpet, Inc. | 0.27% | 118.27% |
| Befesa S.A. | 0.84% | 95.84% |
| Tronox Holdings plc | 0.48% | 84.25% |

EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Cabot Corporation | 0.22% | 151.66% |
| Japan Airport Terminal Co., Ltd. | 0.20% | 151.53% |
| Freshpet, Inc. | 0.27% | 132.42% |
| Befesa S.A. | 0.84% | 109.74% |
| Tronox Holdings plc | 0.48% | 95.84% |

EBITDA at risk scenario analysis demonstrates a significant contrast between low and medium and high scenarios. In a low scenario, only c. 1% of EBITDA is at risk in 2030 and only c. 2% of EBITDA is at risk by 2050. The medium scenario assumes that policies will be implemented to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and limit climate change to 2°C in the long term, but with action delayed in the short term. In this scenario, EBITDA at risk is c. 3.5% in 2030, c. 6% in 2040 and c. 8% in 2050.

A top contributor to EBITDA at risk in the high scenario is Cabot Corporation, a speciality chemicals company. It is worth noting that Cabot Corporation is working towards sustainability targets for 2025, including targeting reduction in greenhouse gas emissions intensity by 20%. Beyond the Scope 1 emissions, the holding manager sees Cabot Corporation positively contributing to the world's need to de-carbonize as their reinforcement materials improve roll resistance of tires resulting in better fuel efficiency. In addition Cabot Corporation

Global Small Cap Equities

Carbon earnings at risk

materials are used to improve conductivity of li-ion batteries and hence support better efficiency needed with the world shifting to electrification.

Another top contributor is Japan Airport Terminal Co which is also expected to be negatively impacted by future carbon pricing policies as the company is involved in the management and operation of the Tokyo International Airport terminal building.

Introduction

| Total fund value | | Absolute carbon emissions | | Carbon inter | |
|------------------|---------|------------------------------|---------|-----------------|---------|
| Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 | Q4 2022 | Q4 2023 |
| £707m | £640m | 44,547 | 36,088 | 72 | 65 |

Portfolio Objective

To provide exposure to global equities in a way which seeks to moderate the expected high levels of risk in equities without reducing long term returns, through exposure to the low volatility factor and manager skill, at moderate cost with reasonable liquidity.

Portfolio Approach

The portfolio consists of a diversified range of global equities and should achieve its low volatility objective largely through portfolio construction and stock selection, rather than e.g. trading or option overlays.

Carbon Emissions

The Low Volatility portfolio exhibits a significant decrease in weighted average carbon intensity relative to the MSCI ACWI benchmark. We note that ~10% of our WACI contribution comes from a company called Portland General Electric. The company operates in a sub industry that has an exposure to high carbon intensity due to the current fuels required for electrical consumption. However, Portland itself is on a transition pathway to be below 2°C alignment by 2035 and have a longer-term alignment to 1.5°C. They have a number of initiatives in place to transition the energy mix to more renewable sources. This future alignment is not captured in the standard WACI formula. However, as Low Volatility is a quantitative, rules-based process, Portland General Electric meets the specifications for inclusion in this portfolio. As previously mentioned, the overall portfolio shows a significant reduction in carbon intensity when held relative to the benchmark.

Disclosures

The portfolio is well covered in terms Full/Partial scope 1 disclosures, with regards to both GHG weighted disclosure and value-weighted disclosure, and there is very little need for modelled disclosures. Whilst we have seen the modelled outcomes decrease over time, we have also seen an increase in partial disclosure, rather than full disclosure, which is a trend we will continue to monitor over time.

Fossil Fuels

The portfolio exhibits a significant decrease in fossil fuel related activities when compared to the benchmark. Again, most of our exposure comes through the Power Generation sectors, such as Portland General Electric, who are on a pathway to increase renewable sources into the energy mix. We do also have a small amount

Low Volatility Global Equities

Introduction

of exposure to Crude Petroleum through a position in Chevron Corporation, however, we should note, this is significantly less exposure than the benchmark.

The portfolio also exhibits a notable reduction in future emissions by reserves relative to the benchmark. This has significantly decreased since last year and is largely driven by Gas reserves.

Low Volatility Global Equities v MSCI ACWI



Current year top contributors to WACI

| Name | Carbon-to-Reve (tC | nue intensity :O2e/mGBP) | Weight (%) | Contr. (%) |
|--------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| Portland Ge | eneral Electric | 2,768 | 0.46% | -9.78% |
| NRG Energy | , Inc. | 1,568 | 0.53% | -6.14% |
| National Fu | el Gas Company | 1,087 | 0.53% | -4.10% |
| Nestlé S.A. | | 434 | 1.22% | -3.02% |
| Buzzi S.p.A. | | 6,647 | 0.06% | -2.98% |

The WACI shows the portfolio exposure to carbon intensive companies. This metric takes the carbon intensity (total carbon emissions divided by total revenue) of each investee and multiplies it by its weight in the portfolio



Portfolio disclosure rates by method

| Carbon disclosure category | GHG-weighted disclosure | Value-weighted disclosure |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Full Disclosure | 28% | 45% |
| Modelled | 3% | 8% |
| Partial Disclosure | 69% | 46% |

Full Disclosure - Data disclosed by a company in an un-edited form.

Partial Disclosure - S&P has used data disclosed by a company but has made adjustments to match the reporting scope required by its research process.

Modelled - In the absence of usable disclosures, the data has been modelled.



Top contributors to weighted fossil fuel revenues

| Name | Weight (%) | Weighted FF Revenue (%) |
|---------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| National Fuel Gas Company | 0.53% | 0.25% |
| Portland General Electric | 0.46% | 0.15% |
| Chevron Corporation | 0.26% | 0.10% |
| Consolidated Edison, Inc. | 0.43% | 0.08% |
| Dominion Energy, Inc. | 0.10% | 0.03% |

The Industry Breakdown of Fossil Fuel Related Activities chart above breaks down the 'extractives' and 'energy' revenue exposure into specific industry exposures.



Future emissions from reserves by type (MtCO)

| Source | FY 2 | FY 2022 | | FY 2023 | |
|----------------|-------|---------|-------|---------|--|
| | Port. | Ben. | Port. | Ben. | |
| Coal | 0.75 | 0.39 | 0.00 | 0.34 | |
| Oil | 0.03 | 0.39 | 0.03 | 0.34 | |
| Gas | 0.15 | 0.20 | 0.14 | 0.20 | |
| Oil and/or Gas | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | |

Future emissions by type indicates an emissions level for each fossil fuel type. We provide this analysis for each portfolio against its benchmark, as well as how it has changed over time. Above we display this analysis for the Portfolio.

Industry breakdown of fossil fuel related activities

Paris alignment

Paris alignment

| | Portfolio | Benchmark |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Alignment | 2-3°C | 2-3°C |
| Alignment Gap: <1.5 °C | 38,925 | 121,828 |
| Alignment Gap: 1.5 - 2 °C | 9,584 | 38,477 |
| Alignment Gap: 2 - 3 °C | -56,667 | -55,140 |





Worst portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | | |
|---|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Bottom | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) | |
| National Fuel Gas Company | 0.53% | 21,568 | 6,692,466 | |
| Marathon Petroleum Corporation | 0.36% | 13,252 | 199,014,646 | |
| Kinross Gold Corporation | 0.74% | 11,195 | 11,237,698 | |
| Portland General Electric Company | 0.46% | 5,006 | 73,158,621 | |
| Chevron Corporation | 0.26% | 4,288 | 588,771,035 | |
| Nucor Corporation | 0.19% | 3,907 | 93,340,721 | |
| Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corporation | 1.29% | 2,840 | 27,256,366 | |
| Cardinal Health, Inc. | 0.20% | 2,744 | 9,320,528 | |
| Kao Corporation | 0.83% | 2,340 | 8,507,108 | |
| Telstra Group Limited | 0.91% | 1,378 | 11,350,642 | |
| | | | | |

Top portfolio performers to emissions reduction goals

| GHG emissions WRT 2 degree alignment | | (Under)/over budget | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Тор | Weight (%) | apportioned emissions | Total emissions (2012-2030) |
| NRG Energy, Inc. | 0.53% | -41,443 | 1,179,448,038 |
| Commercial Metals Company | 0.07% | -6,644 | 120,440,882 |
| SSE plc | 0.13% | -6,488 | 440,057,977 |
| McKesson Corporation | 0.73% | -3,285 | 44,767,101 |
| Holcim AG | 0.05% | -2,667 | 2,689,430,497 |
| JB Hi-Fi Limited | 0.39% | -2,158 | 4,690,472 |
| Grand Canyon Education, Inc. | 0.43% | -1,979 | 2,375,377 |
| ITOCHU Corporation | 0.18% | -1,609 | 125,672,013 |
| The Kroger Co. | 0.59% | -1,587 | 133,105,014 |
| Orkla ASA | 0.29% | -1,448 | 11,656,148 |

The portfolio is aligned with the benchmark in terms of the Paris alignment and currently aligned to 2-3°C. However, the portfolio is notably closer to achieving the 1.5-2°C alignment than the benchmark.

Physical risk

Financial impact composite score



Financial impact by risk type - 2050 high



Top 10 contributors to portfolio-level physical risk - 2050 high scenario

| Name | Weight (%) | Asset count | Financial impact composite score | Composite score | Sensitivity adjusted composite score |
|---------------------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha | 0.04% | 7 | 22.67 | 64 | 46 |
| Telstra Group Limited | 0.91% | 52 | 11.74 | 70 | 18 |
| Walmart Inc. | 0.75% | 2,778 | 10.64 | 77 | 48 |
| Verizon Communications Inc. | 0.26% | 209 | 9.70 | 72 | 33 |
| Swisscom AG | 0.81% | 7 | 9.24 | 64 | 9 |
| Santen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. | 0.12% | 4 | 8.92 | 69 | 28 |
| Koninklijke KPN N.V. | 0.17% | 12 | 8.03 | 73 | 9 |
| Orange S.A. | 0.17% | 59 | 7.76 | 72 | 16 |
| Novartis AG | 1.18% | 127 | 7.75 | 72 | 52 |
| Ackermans & Van Haaren NV | 0.14% | 31 | 7.72 | 55 | 36 |

The portfolio is mostly aligned with benchmark when we consider the financial risk across all the physical risk types, albeit extreme heat and water stress having a higher financial impact in the portfolio than the benchmark. The portfolio is marginally higher than the benchmark when considering the composite score.

Carbon earnings at risk



EBITDA at risk % - 2030

8.0% Unpriced Carbon Cost as % EBITDA 6.0% 4.0% 2.0% 0.0% Low

EBITDA at risk % - 2040



Medium

High

EBITDA at risk - 2030 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Buzzi S.p.A. | 0.06% | 224.23% |
| NRG Energy, Inc. | 0.53% | 164.73% |
| Holcim AG | 0.05% | 151.22% |
| Portland General Electric Company | 0.46% | 70.62% |
| Dominion Energy, Inc. | 0.10% | 66.07% |

EBITDA at risk - 2040 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Buzzi S.p.A. | 0.06% | 356.43% |
| Holcim AG | 0.05% | 236.47% |
| NRG Energy, Inc. | 0.53% | 233.34% |
| Portland General Electric Company | 0.46% | 113.58% |
| Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha | 0.04% | 93.57% |

EBITDA at risk - 2050 top 5 (High)

| Name | Weight (%) | Unpriced carbon cost / EBITDA |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|
| Buzzi S.p.A. | 0.06% | 408.95% |
| Holcim AG | 0.05% | 270.23% |
| NRG Energy, Inc. | 0.53% | 261.02% |
| Portland General Electric Company | 0.46% | 130.32% |
| Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha | 0.04% | 108.36% |

Although not highlighted in the above charts the portfolio has a notably lower EBITDA at risk than the MSCI ACWI, which also implies a reduced impact on the EBITDA margin when pricing in carbon cost. This relative reduction to Carbon cost risk applies across all timeframes out to 2050. We should note that this methodology takes a snapshot of where the company is today and doesn't consider the companies future trajectory with regards to future alignment or carbon reduction initiatives. This methodology also overlooks the potential for positive credits, that can be applied in cases such as emissions avoided. As previously discussed, companies such as Portland General Electric have transition plans which should lead to a real-world reduction in carbon earnings risk.

Brunel Pension Partnership Forging better futures

2.0%

0.0%

Low

Disclaimer

Brunel Pension Partnership Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority No. 790168.

This information is being published to comply with regulatory guidelines and does not constitute advice of any kind (including investment, tax or legal) on which you should rely, or a recommendation to buy or sell any product, service or investment.

This information should not be reproduced, copied or shared.

The calculations and information included in this report have been prepared on the basis of internal data and the interpretation of data, provided by external data providers, including S&P and State Street. While Brunel believes that such third party information is reliable, it has not sought to independently verify information obtained from public and third-party sources, and does not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or reliability of such information.

Some of the data included in this information relates to portfolios or assets of Brunel's clients which are not managed by Brunel as their discretionary investment manager ("**Legacy Portfolios**"). Brunel takes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of any data relating to Legacy Portfolios.

Calculations have been made based on the data available at a specific time, which may change without notice. S&P data was rendered on 21/03/2024. The ESG regulatory environment, and the breadth and availability of ESG data, are subject to change, and undue reliance should therefore not be placed on the disclosures made in this information.

Climate data sources: Data provided by S&P Global Market Intelligence. Copyright © 2024, S&P Global Market Intelligence (and its affiliates, as applicable). Reproduction of any information, data or material, including ratings ("**Content**") in any form is prohibited except with the prior written permission of the relevant party. Such party, its affiliates and suppliers ("**Content Providers**") do not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness, timeliness or availability of any Content and are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, or for the results obtained from the use of such Content. In no event shall Content Providers be liable for any damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including lost income or lost profit and opportunity costs) in connection with any use of the Content. A reference to a particular investment or security, a rating or any observation concerning an investment that is part of the suitability of an investment or security and should not be relied on as investment advice. Credit ratings are statements of opinions and are not statements of fact.

Portfolio holdings and benchmark data sources: Portfolio holdings data provided by State Street GX Limited and affiliated platforms.

This report includes the use of benchmark data provided by underlying data indices which have been developed by, and are the exclusive property of, their developers, and have been licensed for use by Brunel Pension Partnership Limited. No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made as to the accuracy or ability of any index to represent the asset class or market sector that it purports to represent and none of Brunel, the developers or any third party licensors shall have any liability for errors, omissions, or interruptions of any index or the data included therein.

The S&P Dow Jones indices (including iBoxx) are registered trademarks of S&P Global, Inc. ("S&P Global") or its affiliates; DOW JONES is a registered trademark of Dow Jones Trademark Holdings LLC ("Dow Jones"). 'FTSE' is a trade and service mark of London Stock Exchange and The Financial Times Limited.